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Dear Stakeholders:

I am pleased to report on 2005 and provide a few additional thoughts with respect to the Gambro integration.

Clinical Outcomes: DaVita, including our newly acquired centers, achieved strong performance again this
year in all areas. Here are some examples in the areas of access placement, nutrition,
kinetics and adequacy:

• 47% of our patients are receiving their dialysis thru an arteriovenous fistula,

• 84% of our patients achieved an albumin level of 3.5, and

• 93.5% of our patients achieved a Kt/V of 1.2.

2005 was a superb clinical year! DaVita delivered the best care in its history leading
the United States in many of the standard measures of clinical performance.

Gambro Acquisition: Effective October 1, 2005, we completed our acquisition of Gambro Healthcare and
we now serve over 96,000 of the nation’s dialysis patients in 41 states and the District
of Columbia. We continue to believe that this combination will improve our
competitive position in the United States and enable us to build an even stronger
platform for our initiatives to improve care for patients and improve value to payors
and taxpayers.

Large integrations are like running a marathon. They require rigorous preparation,
strenuous effort, and deep reservoirs of endurance. Our progress has been solid so far,
although all integrations carry the risk of operating disruption and ours is no
exception.

Cash Flow: In 2005 we had the strongest cash flows in our history. Cash flow from operations
was $441 million and free cash flow was $378 million. Both of these numbers
exclude the tax benefit from stock option exercises and the after-tax benefit of prior
year Medicare lab recoveries, which together added approximately $44 million.

Earnings: Net earnings from continuing operations were $207 million and earnings per share
were $1.99, which includes the Gambro acquisition in the fourth quarter. The
operating performance of the DaVita and Gambro centers was solidly in line with our
guidance for the year and fourth quarter as were the additional costs associated with
the merger.

Public Policy: 2005 was a very successful year! We continued to build strong relationships with key
government stakeholders, including CMS, MedPAC and Congress. We achieved an
appropriate drug-add back in an environment that could very well have led to an
erroneously low one. We also achieved a much needed 1.6% increase to the
composite rate in a year when Congress delivered bad news to many other segments.
Our situation remains serious, however, as we continue to lose money on the over
85% of our patients with the government as their primary payor.



Our patients know that it is important that communication flows both ways. DaVita
Patient Citizens, which was formed in early 2005 now has over 15,500 members and
has weighed in on issues that are important to them by communicating with CMS and
Congress, including making trips to Washington to visit their representatives.

Outlook: In 2005 DaVita delivered strong performance to all of our stakeholders.

As we look out over the next five years, it appears that demand will continue to grow.
It also appears that reimbursement pressure will continue to grow and we still believe
that over the long-term our margins will compress.

We will continue to invest in our portfolio of strategic initiatives that are intended to
position us to be the highest value provider of kidney related care for all payors.

Finally I would like to offer heartfelt thanks to our 28,000 teammates. Your resilience and tenacity in
simultaneously meeting the needs of so many diverse constituencies is remarkable.

Respectfully submitted,

Kent J. Thiry
Chairman and CEO

For reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to comparable GAAP measures, see our press release for the 4th Quarter and Year Ended
2005 Results, which is on our Website at www.davita.com





Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation

Forward looking statements

This Annual Report contains statements that are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
federal securities laws. All statements that do not concern historical facts are forward-looking statements and
include, among other things, statements about our expectations, beliefs, intentions and/or strategies for the
future. These forward-looking statements include statements regarding our future operations, financial condition
and prospects, expectations for treatment growth rates, revenue per treatment, expense growth, levels of the
provision for uncollectible accounts receivable, operating income, cash flow, operating cash flow, pre-tax stock-
based compensation expense, capital expenditures, the development of new centers and center acquisitions, the
impact of the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition and our level of indebtedness on our financial performance,
including earnings per share, anticipated integration costs and the expected impact of FASB Statement
No. 123R. These statements involve substantial known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause our
actual results to differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements, including, but not
limited to, risks resulting from the regulatory environment in which we operate, economic and market conditions,
competitive activities, other business conditions, accounting estimates, the concentration of profits generated
from preferred provider organizations, or PPO, and private indemnity patients, possible reductions in private
and government payment rates, changes in pharmaceutical practice patterns, payment policies or
pharmaceutical pricing, our ability to maintain contracts with physician medical directors, legal compliance
risks, including our continued compliance with complex government regulations and the ongoing review by the
U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and the OIG, the subpoena from the U.S.
Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York, the subpoenas from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the
Eastern District of Missouri, DVA Renal Healthcare’s ability to comply with its corporate integrity agreement,
our ability to complete and integrate acquisitions of businesses, including the integration of DVA Renal
Healthcare and the risk factors set forth in this Annual Report. We base our forward-looking statements on
information currently available to us, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise these statements,
whether as a result of changes in underlying factors, new information, future events or otherwise.

The following should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements.

Overview

We are a leading provider of dialysis services in the United States through a network of approximately
1,233 outpatient dialysis centers and 795 hospitals, serving approximately 96,000 patients. In October 2005, we
acquired DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc. (formerly known as Gambro Healthcare, Inc.), one of the largest dialysis
service providers in the United States, for approximately $3.06 billion and entered into a 10-year Alliance and
Product Supply Agreement with Gambro valued as a $162 million intangible liability. At the time of the
acquisition, DVA Renal Healthcare was operating 566 outpatient dialysis centers and generating annual revenues
of approximately $2 billion. The operating results of DVA Renal Healthcare are included in our operating results
effective October 1, 2005.

In accordance with a consent order issued by the Federal Trade Commission on October 4, 2005, we were
required to divest a total of 69 outpatient dialysis centers and to terminate two management services agreements
in order for us to complete the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition. In 2005, we divested a total of 71 centers and
terminated the two management services agreements. In addition, effective January 1, 2006, we completed the
sale of three additional centers that were previously pending state regulatory approval. We received total cash
consideration of approximately $330 million for all of the centers divested and used approximately $13 million to
purchase the minority interest ownership of a joint venture, to distribute a minority owners’ share of the sale
proceeds, and to pay related transaction costs. We anticipate paying related income taxes of approximately
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$90 million. The operating results of the historical DaVita divested centers and its one management services
agreement are reflected as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements for all periods
presented.

Our stated mission is to be the provider, employer and partner of choice. We believe our attention to these
three areas—our patients, our teammates, and our business partners represent the major drivers of our long-term
success, aside from external factors such as government policy and physician practice patterns. Accordingly, two
principal non-financial metrics we track are quality clinical outcomes and teammate turnover. We have
developed our own composite index for measuring improvements in our clinical outcomes, which we refer to as
the DaVita Quality Index, or DQI. Our clinical outcomes have improved over each of the past three years, and
we ended 2005 with the best clinical outcomes that we have ever achieved. Although it is difficult to reliably
measure clinical performance across our industry, we believe our clinical outcomes compare favorably with other
dialysis providers in the United States. Over the past several years we have achieved significant reductions in
teammate turnover, which has been a major contributor to our performance improvements. We will continue to
focus on these fundamental long-term value drivers.

We are pleased with the overall clinical, operating and financial performance levels achieved over the past
three years. Although our business has areas of significant potential exposure, as delineated in the risk factors in
this Annual Report, our operating results over the past three years have not been significantly adversely affected
by these risk factors, although we cannot provide any assurance that they will not have an impact in the future.

Our operations represent a single reporting segment, with more than 95% of our revenues currently derived
directly from providing dialysis services, of which 85% represents outpatient hemodialysis services in 1,195
centers that are wholly-owned or majority-owned. Other direct dialysis services, which are operationally
integrated with our center operations, are peritoneal dialysis and home-based hemodialysis and hospital inpatient
hemodialysis services.

The principal drivers of our revenue are a) the number of treatments, which is primarily a function of the
number of chronic patients requiring three treatments per week, and b) average treatment revenue. The total
patient base is a relatively stable factor, influenced by a demographically growing need for dialysis, our
relationships with referring physicians together with the quality of our clinical care, and our pace of opening and
acquiring new centers.

The number of dialysis treatments increased approximately 36% in 2005 as compared to 2004 and
approximately 11% in 2004 as compared to 2003. The acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare accounted for
approximately 23% of treatment volume growth for 2005, and represented approximately 44% of the total
treatments in the fourth quarter of 2005. Approximately 8% of the increase in the number of treatments in 2005
resulted from routine acquisitions and approximately 5% was due to increased treatments in existing centers.
Acquisitions accounted for approximately 6% of our 2004 year-over-year treatment volume growth, with the
remaining 5% attributable to increased treatments in existing centers.

Average revenue per treatment is principally driven by our mix of commercial and government (principally
Medicare and Medicaid) patients, the mix and intensity of physician-prescribed pharmaceuticals, commercial and
government payment rates, and our dialysis services charge-capture, billing and collecting operations
performance.

On average, payment rates from commercial payors are more than double Medicare and Medicaid payment
rates, and therefore the percentage of commercial patients to total patients represents a major driver of our total
average revenue per treatment. Approximately 87% of our patients are currently covered under government
programs (principally Medicare, Medicaid, and Medicare-assigned HMO plans). The acquisition of DVA Renal
Healthcare did not materially affect this patient mix percentage.
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Approximately 65% of our total dialysis revenue is from government-based programs. Government payment
rates are principally determined by federal (Medicare) and state (Medicaid) policy. These payment rates have
limited potential for rate increases and are sometimes at risk of being reduced. Medicare revenues represent
approximately 50% of our dialysis revenue. Cumulative net increases in Medicare payment rates from 1990
through 2005 total approximately 5%. There were no Medicare payment rate increases for 2003 and 2004. A
1.6% increase was effective on January 1, 2005, however this increase was more than offset by other structural
changes to Medicare dialysis payment rates that also became effective January 1, 2005. In addition, effective
January 1, 2006, CMS implemented a 1.6% increase. Medicaid rates in some states have been under severe
budget pressures. Approximately 35% of our dialysis revenue is from commercial insurance and managed-care
plans. Commercial rates can vary significantly and a major portion of our commercial rates are at contracted
amounts with major payors and are subject to intense negotiation pressure. Over the past three years we have
been successful in maintaining relatively stable average payment rates in the aggregate for patients with
commercial plans, in addition to obtaining periodic fee schedule increases, although we expect continued
pressure on commercial payment rates.

Approximately 35% of our dialysis revenue has been associated with physician-prescribed pharmaceuticals,
with EPO accounting for approximately 25% of our dialysis revenue. Therefore changes in physician practice
patterns, pharmaceutical protocols, and pharmaceutical intensities significantly influence our revenue levels.
Such changes, driven by physician practice patterns and protocols focused on improving clinical outcomes,
accounted for a significant portion of the increase in average revenue per treatment in 2004.

Our operating performance with respect to dialysis services charge-capture, billing and collection can also
be a significant factor in how much average revenue per treatment we actually realize. Over the past three years
we have invested heavily in new systems and processes that we believe have helped improve our operating
performance and reduce our regulatory compliance risks and we expect to continue to improve these systems. We
are in the process of upgrading our billing and collections systems as we integrate our systems with DVA Renal
Healthcare’s systems which may impact our collections performance.

Our revenue recognition involves significant estimation risks. Our estimates are developed based on the best
information available to us and our best judgment as to the reasonably assured collectibility of our billings as of
the reporting date. Changes in estimates are reflected in the then current period financial statements based upon
on-going actual experience trends, or subsequent settlements and realizations depending on the nature and
predictability of the estimates and contingencies.

Our annual average dialysis revenue per treatment for continuing operations was $313, $313 and $305 for
2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The revenue per treatment averages for continuing operations for the three
and nine month periods ending September 30, 2005, prior to the acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare, were
approximately $317 and $314 per treatment, respectively. Principal factors affecting our average revenue per
treatment were increases in our standard fee schedules (principally impacting non-contracted commercial
revenue), changes in mix and intensity of physician-prescribed pharmaceuticals, commercial contract
negotiations, together with a relatively stable mix of commercial patients and commercial rates. The combined
average revenue per treatment for the fourth quarter 2005, including DVA Renal Healthcare’s results from
October 1, 2005, was $311 per treatment. The decrease in average revenue per treatment in the fourth quarter
reflects the effect of lower average revenue per treatment attributable to the DVA Renal Healthcare centers and a
decline in the intensities of physician-prescribed pharmaceuticals in the quarter. Our ability to negotiate
acceptable payment rates with contracted commercial payors, changes in the mix and intensities of physician-
prescribed pharmaceuticals, government payment policies, and changes in the mix of government and
non-government payments may materially impact our average revenue per treatment in the future. Additionally,
the integration process for the DVA Renal Healthcare billing system could adversely affect our collections
through the two to three year transition period.

The principal drivers for our patient care costs are clinical hours per treatment, labor rates, vendor pricing of
pharmaceuticals, and business infrastructure and compliance costs. However, other cost categories can also
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represent significant cost changes such as increased insurance costs experienced in 2004. Our average clinical
hours per treatment have improved over the past three years primarily because of reduced teammate turnover and
improved training and processes. We believe there is limited opportunity for productivity improvements beyond
the levels achieved in 2004 and 2005, and federal and state policies can adversely impact our ability to achieve
optimal productivity levels. Labor rates have increased consistent with general industry trends. For the past three
years we have been able to negotiate relatively stable pharmaceutical pricing with our vendors. We expect
relatively stable pricing through 2006, however, our agreement with Amgen for the purchase of EPO includes
volume discount and other thresholds which could negatively impact our earnings if we are unable to meet those
thresholds. Our acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare did not have a significant impact on our overall patient
costs on a per treatment basis in the fourth quarter of 2005.

General and administrative expenses have remained relatively constant as a percent of total revenues over
the past three years. However, this reflects substantial increases in spending related to strengthening our business
and regulatory compliance processes, legal and other professional fees, and expanding support functions. We
expect that these higher levels of general and administrative expenses will be generally maintained or increased
to support our long-term initiatives and to support our efforts to achieve the highest levels of regulatory
compliance. Approximately $11 million in integration costs associated with the acquisition of DVA Renal
Healthcare were incurred in the fourth quarter of 2005, and we currently expect integration costs to be in the
range of $50 million in 2006, exclusive of capital asset expenditures.

Although other revenues represent less than 5% of total revenues, successful resolutions of disputed
Medicare billings at our Florida lab resulted in recoveries related to prior years’ services being recognized as
current period revenue and operating income of approximately $4 million, $8 million, and $24 million in 2005,
2004, and 2003, respectively.

Outlook for 2006. We are currently targeting operating income in 2006 to be in the $630—$700 million
range before the impact of FASB No. 123R related to stock-based compensation expense. We currently expect
that our pre-tax stock option expense will be in the range of $20 million to $30 million, significantly dependent
on the timing and amounts of grants in 2006, as well as the Company’s stock price at those future dates. These
projections and the underlying assumptions involve significant risks and uncertainties, and actual results may
vary significantly from these current projections. These risks, among others, include those relating to the
concentration of profits generated from PPO and private indemnity patients, possible reductions in private and
government payment rates, changes in pharmaceutical practice patterns, payment policies or pharmaceutical
pricing, our ability to maintain contracts with our physician medical directors, legal compliance risks, including
our continued compliance with complex government regulations and the ongoing review by the U.S. Attorney’s
Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and the OIG, the subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the
Eastern District of New York and the subpoenas from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of
Missouri, DVA Renal Healthcare’s compliance with its corporate integrity agreement, and our ability to
complete and integrate acquisitions of businesses, including the integration of DVA Renal Healthcare. You
should read “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report and the forward-looking statements and associated risks as
discussed on page three for more information about these and other potential risks. We undertake no obligation to
update or revise these projections, whether as a result of changes in underlying factors, new information, future
events or otherwise.
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Results of operations

Following is a summary of operating results for reference in the discussion that follows. Prior year operating
results have been restated to reflect only continuing operations.

Year ended December 31,

Continuing Operations 2005 2004 2003

(dollar amounts rounded to nearest million, except per treatment data)
Net operating revenues:

Current period services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,970 100% $ 2,169 100% $ 1,895 100%
Prior years’ services—laboratory . . . . . . . . . 4 8 24

2,974 2,177 1,919
Operating expenses and charges:

Patient care costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,036 69% 1,470 68% 1,288 68%
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 272 9% 192 9% 160 8%
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . 117 4% 83 4% 71 4%
Provision for uncollectible accounts . . . . . . . 62 2% 39 2% 34 2%
Minority interests and equity income, net . . . 22 12 7

Total operating expenses and charges . . . . . . 2,509 85% 1,796 83% 1,560 82%

Operating income—including prior years’
recoveries (i.e., including amounts in italics) . . . $ 465 $ 381 $ 360

Dialysis treatments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,044,966 6,654,069 6,015,201
Average dialysis treatments per treatment day . . . 28,898 21,225 19,224
Average dialysis revenue per treatment . . . . . . . . . $ 313 $ 313 $ 305

The operating results of DVA Renal Healthcare are included in our operating results from October 1, 2005.
Our operating income margins, excluding recoveries for prior years’ lab services, declined from 17.2% in 2004 to
15.5% in 2005, primarily due to higher labor and benefit costs, and the effects of the DVA Renal Healthcare
acquisition. The average revenue per treatment rates attributable to DVA Renal Healthcare centers are lower than
our average rates before the acquisition, and we incurred approximately $11 million in integration costs in the fourth
quarter of 2005. Our combined operating margin for the fourth quarter of 2005 was approximately 14%.

Net operating revenues

Operating revenues for current period services increased 37% in 2005 compared to 2004 and 14% in 2004
compared to 2003. The acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare in the fourth quarter of 2005 accounted for
approximately 22% of the increase in 2005, approximately 12% was due to increases in the number of dialysis
treatments with the balance of approximately 3% due to additional increases in the average dialysis revenue per
treatment and additional lab, management fees and ancillary revenue. Approximately 11% of the increase in
2004 was due to increases in the number of dialysis treatments with the balance attributable to increases in the
average dialysis revenue per treatment.

Dialysis revenues represented approximately 95%, 96% and 96% of net operating revenues in 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively. Lab and other ancillary services and management fee income accounted for the balance
of revenues.

Dialysis revenues. We generate approximately 85%, 9% and 6% of our total dialysis revenue from
outpatient hemodialysis, peritoneal dialysis and home-based dialysis, and hospital inpatient hemodialysis,
respectively. Major components of dialysis revenues include the administration of EPO and other
pharmaceuticals as part of the dialysis treatment, which represents approximately 35% of total dialysis revenues.

Approximately 65% of our total dialysis revenues are from government-based programs, principally
Medicare, Medicaid, and Medicare Advantage Plans, representing approximately 87% of our total patients. Our
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non-government payors consist principally of commercial insurance plans, including more than 500 with whom
we have contracted rates. Additionally, we have approximately 1,500 single patient agreements establishing our
payment rates for patients not covered by other contracts. Approximately 10 percent of our revenue is associated
with non-contracted commercial plans. Less than one percent of our dialysis services payments were received
directly from patients. No single commercial payor accounts for more than 5% of total dialysis revenues.

On average we are paid at more than double the Medicare or Medicaid rates for services provided to patients
covered by commercial healthcare plans. Patients covered by employer group health plans transition to Medicare
coverage after a maximum of 33 months. As of year-end 2005, the Medicare ESRD dialysis treatment rates for
our patients were between $134 and $159 per treatment, or an overall average of $145 per treatment, excluding
the administration of separately billed pharmaceuticals.

The majority of our net earnings from dialysis services are derived from commercial payors, some of which
pay at negotiated payment rates and others which pay based on our usual and customary fee schedule. The
commercial payment rates are under continuous downward pressure as we negotiate contract rates with large
HMOs and insurance carriers, and may be further negatively impacted by the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition.
Additionally, as a patient transitions from commercial coverage to Medicare or Medicaid coverage, the payment
rates normally decline substantially.

Our year-over-year treatment volume growth was as follows:

2005 2004

Treatment growth related to:
Existing and newly opened centers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5.4% 5.8%
Routine center acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7.5% 5.0%
DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition effective 10/1/05 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23.0% —

Total treatment growth . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.9% 10.8%

The average dialysis revenue per treatment for continuing operations was $313, $313 and $305 for 2005,
2004, and 2003, respectively. The revenue per treatment averages for continuing operations for the three and nine
month periods ending September 30, 2005, prior to the acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare, were
approximately $317 and $314 per treatment, respectively. Principal factors affecting our average revenue per
treatment were increases in our standard fee schedules (impacting non-contracted commercial revenue), changes
in mix and intensity of physician-prescribed pharmaceuticals, commercial contract negotiations, together with a
relatively stable mix of commercial patients and commercial rates. The combined average revenue per treatment
for the fourth quarter 2005, including DVA Renal Healthcare’s results effective October 1 2005, was $311 per
treatment. The decrease in average revenue per treatment in the fourth quarter reflects a lower average revenue
per treatment attributable to the DVA Renal Healthcare centers and a decline in the intensities of physician-
prescribed pharmaceuticals in the quarter. DVA Renal Healthcare’s percentage mix of government and
non-government patients is similar to our historical percentages. Our ability to negotiate acceptable payment
rates with contracted commercial payors, changes in the mix and intensities of physician-prescribed
pharmaceuticals, government payment policies, and changes in the mix of government and non-government
payments may materially impact our average revenue per treatment in the future. Additionally, the integration
process for the DVA Renal Healthcare billing system could adversely affect our collections through the two to
three year transition period.

Lab and other services. Lab and other services represented approximately 4% of net operating revenues
for 2005 and 2004. A third-party carrier review of Medicare claims associated with our Florida-based laboratory
was initiated in 1998. No Medicare payments were received for our lab services from the second quarter of 1998
until the third quarter of 2002 while we were appealing the Medicare payment withholds. Following a favorable
administrative law judge ruling in June 2002, payments for the earliest review periods, as well as for current lab
services, were received in the third quarter of 2002. Favorable rulings were subsequently received for the other
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review periods, resulting in additional recoveries. Prior year recoveries include approximately $59 million
received in 2002, $24 million in 2003, $8 million in 2004, and $4 million in 2005. As of December 31, 2005,
there are no significant unresolved Medicare lab billing issues.

Management fee income. Management fee income represented less than 1% of net operating revenues for
2005 and 2004. We operated or provided administrative services to 38 and 34 third-party or minority-owned
dialysis centers as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our management fees are principally based on a
percentage of the revenue of the managed operations, or based upon a percentage of operating income.

Operating expenses and charges

Patient care costs. Patient care costs are those costs directly associated with operating and supporting our
dialysis centers and ancillary operations, and consist principally of labor, pharmaceuticals, medical supplies and
facility costs. As a percentage of current period operating revenues, patient care costs were approximately 69%
for 2005, 68% for 2004 and 68% for 2003. On a per-treatment basis, patient care costs increased year-over-year
approximately $4 and $7 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in 2005 was principally due to higher
labor and benefit costs, and to a lesser extent medical supply costs. The overall average patient care costs per
treatment in the fourth quarter of 2005 were $228 or approximately $4 higher than the full year average. This
increase in the fourth quarter was primarily driven by higher pharmaceutical and other medical supply costs, and
reflects the blended average of the combined operations after the acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare. The
increase in 2004 was primarily due to higher labor costs and increases in the levels of revenue generating
physician prescribed pharmaceuticals. The higher labor costs reflect rising labor rates and the effect of the
increase in the number of newly opened centers, which are not yet at normal productivity levels.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses consist of those costs not
specifically attributable to the dialysis centers and ancillary operations, and include expenses for corporate and
divisional administration, including centralized accounting, billing and cash collection functions, and regulatory
compliance oversight. General and administrative expenses as a percentage of current period operating revenues
were 9.2%, 8.9%, and 8.4% in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. The increase in general and administrative
expense for 2005 was primarily due to infrastructure costs for expanding business operations, professional fees
for legal and compliance initiatives and government investigations, higher labor costs, and integration costs
associated with the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition. The increase in 2004 principally consisted of higher labor
costs, professional fees for legal and compliance initiatives, and increases in support infrastructure for corporate
initiatives and business expansion.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization was approximately 4% of current period
operating revenues for each of the past three years, and for the fourth quarter of 2005. See Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements regarding valuations of intangibles acquired or assumed in connection with
the acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare.

Provision for uncollectible accounts. As a result of the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition and the higher
historical provision rate for DVA Renal Healthcare, the post-acquisition average provision for uncollectible
accounts receivable was 2.6% in the fourth quarter of 2005. The provisions for uncollectible accounts receivable
were approximately 2.1% of current period operating revenues for the full year 2005, and 1.8% for 2004 and
2003.

Minority interests and equity income, net. Minority interests net of equity income increased in 2005 by
approximately $10 million over 2004 due to an increase in new centers having minority partners as well as
growth in the earnings of our joint ventures.

Impairments and valuation adjustments. We perform impairment or valuation reviews for our property
and equipment, amortizable intangibles, and investments in and advances to third-party dialysis businesses at
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least annually and whenever a change in condition indicates that a review is warranted. Such changes include
shifts in our business strategy or plans, the quality or structure of our relationships with our partners, or when a
center experiences deteriorating operating performance. Goodwill is also assessed at least annually for possible
valuation impairment using fair value methodologies. No significant impairments or valuation adjustments were
recognized during the periods presented.

Other income

Other income, which was a net of approximately $9 million, $4 million, and $3 million for 2005, 2004, and
2003, respectively, consisted principally of interest income.

Debt expense and refinancing charges

Debt expense for 2005, 2004, and 2003 consisted of interest expense of approximately $134 million, $50
million, and $64 million, respectively, and amortization of deferred financing costs of approximately $5 million
in 2005, $2 million in 2004, and $3 million in 2003. The increase in interest expense in 2005 as compared to
2004 was primarily attributable to borrowings under our new credit facility in connection with the acquisition of
DVA Renal Healthcare, increases in the LIBOR-based variable interest rates and issuance of our new senior and
senior subordinated notes that have average fixed interest rates of approximately 7.0%, offset by changes in our
LIBOR-based receipts from swap settlements. The decrease in interest expense in 2004 as compared to 2003 was
due to changes in the mix of our debt instruments. For most of 2003 we incurred higher interest rates on our
senior subordinated notes, which were paid off in the second half of 2003 and replaced with lower interest rate
borrowings from our prior credit facility. This decrease was partially offset by the effect on interest rates from
our swap agreements and higher average debt balances.

Provision for income taxes

The provision for income taxes for 2005 represented an effective annualized tax rate of 37.4%, compared
with 38.6%, and 39.0% in 2004 and 2003. The lower effective tax rates for 2005 and 2004 were primarily due to
lower state income taxes and tax valuation allowance adjustments. We currently project that the effective income
tax rate for 2006 will be in the range of 39% to 40%. The higher projected rate for 2006 is principally due to
favorable tax valuation adjustments in 2005, higher effective state income tax rates, and lower levels of
tax-exempt interest income.

Accounts receivable

Our accounts receivable balances at December 31, 2005 and 2004 represented approximately 71 and 69
days of revenue, respectively, net of bad debt provision. The relative increase in the days of net revenue in
accounts receivable as of December 31, 2005 reflects an increased level of delayed billings and delayed cash
collections associated with the Medicare certification process for newly opened and acquired centers, as well as
general collection patterns.

As of December 31, 2005 approximately $47 million in unreserved accounts receivable, which represented
less than 6% of our total unreserved accounts receivable balance, were more than six months old. There were no
significant unreserved balances over one year old. Less than one-half of 1% of our treatments are classified as
“patient pay”. Virtually all revenue realized is from government and non-government third-party payors, as
discussed above.

Amounts pending approval from third-party payors as of December 31, 2005, other than the standard
monthly processing, consisted of approximately $24 million associated with Medicare bad debt claims, classified
as “other accounts receivable”. Our Medicare bad debt claims are typically not paid to us until the Medicare
fiscal intermediary audits the claims, and such audits typically occur one to four years after the claims are filed.
As a kidney dialysis provider, our revenue is not subject to cost report settlements except for potentially limiting
the collectibility of Medicare bad debt claims.
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DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition

On October 5, 2005, we completed our acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc. (formerly known as
Gambro Healthcare, Inc.) from Gambro, Inc. under a Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 6, 2004, for
$3.06 billion. DVA Renal Healthcare was one of the largest dialysis service providers in the United States,
operating 566 outpatient dialysis centers serving approximately 43,000 patients and generating annual revenues
of approximately $2 billion. We have incurred approximately $29 million in acquisition related costs through
December 31, 2005. In March 2006, we decided not to make an election pursuant to section 338(h)(10) of the
Internal Revenue Code as permitted under the Stock Purchase Agreement. Such an election would have required
us to make an additional cash payment to Gambro Inc., of approximately $170 million.

In conjunction with the acquisition, we entered into an Alliance and Product Supply Agreement (the Supply
Agreement) with Gambro AB and Gambro Renal Products, Inc. for a minimum of 10 years. The Supply
Agreement has an initial term of seven years and will automatically renew for three additional one-year periods if
we have not negotiated the terms of an extension during the initial term period. Under the Supply Agreement we
are committed to purchase a significant majority of our hemodialysis products, supplies and equipment at fixed
prices. For the year ended December 31, 2005 our total expenditures on such items was approximately 8% of our
total operating costs. See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Divestitures per Federal Trade Commission Consent Order. As a condition of completing the DVA Renal
Healthcare acquisition, we were required by the Federal Trade Commission to divest a total of 69 outpatient
dialysis centers and to terminate two management services agreements. On October 6, 2005, DaVita and DVA
Renal Healthcare completed the sale of 70 outpatient renal dialysis centers to Renal Advantage Inc., formerly
known as RenalAmerica, Inc. and also completed the sale of one other center to a separate physician group, and
terminated the two management services agreements. In addition, effective January 1, 2006, we completed the
sale of three additional centers to Renal Advantage Inc. that were previously pending state regulatory approval in
Illinois. We received total cash consideration of approximately $330 million for all of the centers divested and
used approximately $13 million to purchase the minority interest ownership of a joint venture, to distribute a
minority owner’s share of the sale proceeds, and to pay related transaction costs. We anticipate paying related
income taxes of approximately $90 million on these divestitures. As part of this transaction, Renal Advantage
assumed specific liabilities related to the centers and all other liabilities were retained by the Company. See Note
3 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The operating results of the historical DaVita divested centers are accounted for as discontinued operations
in our consolidated financial statements for all periods presented.

Liquidity and capital resources

Available liquidity. As of December 31, 2005 our cash balance was $432 million and we had undrawn
credit facilities totaling $250 million, of which approximately $50 million was committed for outstanding letters
of credit. We believe that we will have sufficient liquidity and operating cash flows to fund our scheduled debt
service and other obligations over the next twelve months.

Cash flow from operations during 2005 amounted to $486 million, compared with $420 million, including
after-tax Medicare lab recoveries of $17 million for 2004. Non-operating cash outflows in 2005 included
$161 million for capital asset expenditures, including $93 million for new center developments and $3,202
million for acquisitions. We also received in 2005 approximately $298 million from the sale of discontinued
operations. Non-operating cash outflows in 2004 included $128 million for capital asset expenditures, including
$83 million for new center developments, $266 million for acquisitions and $97 million for stock repurchases.
The acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare in the fourth quarter of 2005 resulted in the net addition of 492 dialysis
centers after related divestitures. We acquired 54 other dialysis centers and opened 46 new dialysis centers
during 2005. During 2004, we acquired a total of 51 dialysis centers and opened 44 new dialysis centers. The
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largest acquisition during 2004 was the purchase of the common stock of Physicians Dialysis, Inc. (PDI), for
approximately $150 million, which added 24 centers.

We currently expect to spend approximately $125 million to $135 million for general capital asset
expenditures in 2006, and approximately $130 million to $150 million for new center development and center
acquisitions. Our current projections include opening approximately 40 new centers in 2006. We expect to
generate approximately $410 million to $480 million of operating cash flow in 2006, before capital expenditures
and acquisitions.

2005 capital structure changes. On October 5, 2005, we entered into a new credit agreement allowing for
borrowings of up to $3.05 billion. The facilities under the credit agreement consist of a $250 million six-year
revolving credit facility, a $350 million six-year term loan A facility and a $2,450 million seven-year term loan B
facility (the Facilities). Existing borrowings under the Facilities bear interest at LIBOR plus margins initially
ranging from 2.00% to 2.25%. The margins are subject to adjustment depending upon our achievement of certain
financial ratios and can range from 1.50% to 2.25% for the revolving credit facility and the term loan A, and
2.00% to 2.25% for the term loan B. The Facilities are guaranteed by substantially all of our direct and indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries and are secured by substantially all of our and our subsidiary guarantors’ assets. The
credit agreement also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants and requires compliance with
financial covenants, including a leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio that determine the interest rate
margins described above. The aggregate amount of the Facilities may be increased by up to $500 million as long
as no default exists or would result from such increase and we remain in compliance with the financial covenants
after such increase. Such additional loans would be on substantially the same terms as the original borrowings
under the Facilities.

The term loan A requires annual principal payments of $35 million in 2006, $39.4 million in 2007, $52.5
million in 2008, $61.2 million in 2009, $87.5 million in 2010, and $65.6 in 2011, maturing in October 2011. The
term loan B requires annual principal payments of $24.5 million in years 2006 through 2010, $594 million in
2011 and $1,727 million in 2012, maturing in October 2012.

On October 5, 2005, we borrowed $2,850 million under the Facilities ($50 million on the revolving credit
facility, $350 million on the term loan A and $2,450 million on term loan B), and used these borrowings, along
with available cash of $252 million, to purchase DVA Renal Healthcare and pay related bank fees and expenses
of approximately $47 million and to pay fees and expenses in connection with terminating our then-existing
credit facility. On October 7, 2005, we repaid the $50 million of the revolving credit facility with proceeds from
the sale of the divested centers.

On March 22, 2005, we issued $500 million of 65⁄8% senior notes due 2013 and $850 million of 71⁄4%
senior subordinated notes due 2015 and incurred related deferred financing costs of $28.6 million. The notes are
guaranteed by substantially all of our direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, and require semi-annual
interest payments. We may redeem some or all of the senior notes at any time on or after March 15, 2009 and
some or all of the senior subordinated notes at any time on or after March 15, 2010. We used the net proceeds of
$1,323 million along with available cash of $46 million to repay all outstanding amounts under the term loan
portions of our then-existing credit facilities, including accrued interest.

In conjunction with the repayment and extinguishment of our prior credit facilities during 2005, we
wrote-off deferred financing costs of $8.2 million and reclassified into net income $8.1 million of swap valuation
gains that were previously recorded in other comprehensive income. These gains represented the accumulated
fair value of several interest rate swap instruments that became ineffective as cash flow hedges as a result of the
repayment of our prior credit facilities. In addition we recorded a net loss of $2.1 million related to changes in
fair values of these swaps that were not effective as interest rate hedges until they were redesignated in the
second quarter of 2005.
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Portions of our various interest rate swap agreements that were previously designated and expected to be
effective as forward cash flow hedges became ineffective as a result of us not having any variable rate LIBOR-
based interest payments during a portion of 2005. This resulted in a net charge of $1.7 million to swap valuation
gains, which includes the $1.5 million discussed below as well as a reclassification into income of $2.0 million of
swap valuation losses that were previously recorded in other comprehensive income. The swap payment periods
that began after October 2005 were highly effective cash flow hedges with gains or losses from changes in their
fair values reported in other comprehensive income.

As of December 31, 2005, we maintained a total of nine interest rate swap agreements with amortizing
notional amounts totaling $1,580 million. These agreements had the economic effect of modifying the LIBOR-
based variable interest rate to fixed rates ranging from 3.08% to 4.2675%, resulting in an overall weighted
average effective interest rate of 6.1%, which included the term loan B margin of 2.25%. The swap agreements
expire in 2008 through 2010 and require quarterly interest payments. During 2005, we incurred net cash
obligations of approximately $1.8 million from these swaps, $0.3 million of which is included in debt expense
and $1.5 million of which is included in swap valuation gains. As of December 31, 2005, the total fair value of
these swaps was an asset of approximately $30.8 million. Also during 2005, we recorded $16.8 million, net of
tax, of additional comprehensive income for the changes in fair value of the effective portions of these swaps.

At December 31, 2005, our overall credit facility average effective interest rate was 6.62%, and our overall
average effective interest rate was 6.74%.

As of December 31, 2005, we had approximately 55% of our variable rate debt and approximately 70% of
our total debt economically fixed.

2004 capital structure changes. In the third quarter of 2004, we amended our then-existing credit facilities
in order to modify certain restricted payment covenants principally for acquisitions and share repurchases and we
extended the maturity of the then-existing term loan B until June 30, 2010. We also borrowed an additional
$250 million under a new term loan C principally to fund potential acquisitions and share repurchases. The Term
Loan C interest rate was LIBOR plus 1.75% for an overall effective rate of 4.16% at December 31, 2004.

Under the previously announced Board authorization for share repurchases, we repurchased a total of
3,350,100 shares of common stock at an average price of $28.82 per share during 2004. On November 2, 2004,
our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchase up to an additional $200 million of our common stock, from
time to time, in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The total outstanding Board
authorizations for share repurchases are now approximately $249 million.

In the first quarter of 2004, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement that had the economic effect of
modifying the LIBOR-based interest rate to a fixed rate of 3.08%, plus the Term Loan B margin of 2.00%, for an
overall effective rate of 5.08% as of December 31, 2004. The total amortizing notional amount of the swap was
$135 million matched with the Term Loan B outstanding debt. The agreement expires in January 2009 and
requires quarterly interest payments. As of December 31, 2004, the notional amount of this swap was $135
million and its fair value was an asset of $1.7 million, which resulted in additional comprehensive income during
the year of $1.1 million, net of tax.

In the third quarter of 2004, we entered into another interest rate swap agreement that had the economic
effect of modifying the LIBOR-based interest rate to a fixed rate of 3.64%, plus the Term Loan C margin of
1.75%, for an overall effective rate of 5.39% as of December 31, 2004. The total $75 million non-amortizing
notional amount of the swap was matched with the Term Loan C outstanding debt. The agreement expires in
August 2008 and requires quarterly interest payments. As of December 31, 2004 the fair value of the swap was
an asset of $0.1 million, which resulted in additional comprehensive income during the year of $0.06 million, net
of tax.
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As of December 31, 2004, we maintained three interest rate swap agreements with amortizing notional
amounts totaling $345 million. These agreements had the economic effect of modifying the LIBOR-based
variable interest rate to fixed rates ranging from 3.08% to 3.64%, resulting in an overall weighted average
effective interest rate of 5.27%, which includes the term loan B margin of 2.00% and a term loan C margin of
1.75%. The swap agreements expire in 2008 and 2009 and require quarterly interest payments. During 2004, we
incurred net cash obligations of $5.3 million from these swaps which is included in debt expense. As of
December 31, 2004, the fair value of these swaps was an asset of $2.4 million resulting in additional
comprehensive income during the year of $3.9 million before tax.

On December 10, 2004 we entered into two forward interest rate swap agreements that will have the
economic effect of modifying the LIBOR-based interest rate to a fixed rate at 3.875% effective July 1, 2005. The
total amortizing notional amount of these two swaps is $800 million and both expire in January 2010 and require
quarterly interest payments that began in October 2005. As of December 31, 2004, the aggregate notional amount
of these swaps was $800 million and their fair value was an asset of $0.4 million, which resulted in additional
comprehensive income during the year of $0.2 million, net of tax.

As a result of our swap agreements, over 80% of our outstanding variable rate debt was economically fixed
as of December 31, 2004.

Off-balance sheet arrangements and aggregate contractual obligations

In addition to the debt obligations reflected on our balance sheet, we have commitments associated with
operating leases, letters of credit and our investments in third-party dialysis businesses. Substantially all of our
facilities are leased. We have potential acquisition obligations for several jointly-owned centers, in the form of
put provisions in joint venture agreements, which are exercisable at the third-party owners’ future discretion.
These put provisions, if exercised, would require us to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at either the
appraised fair market value or a predetermined multiple of earnings or cash flow attributable to the equity interest
put to us. We also have potential cash commitments to provide operating capital advances as needed to several
third-party centers including minority owned centers and centers and clinics that we operate under administrative
services agreements.

The following is a summary of these contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2005 (in
millions):

Less Than
1 Year

1-3
Years

3-5
Years

After
5 Years Total

Scheduled payments under contractual obligations:
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 71 $143 $199 $3,737 $4,150
Interest payments on senior and senior subordinated notes . . . . 95 190 190 360 835
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 3 1 2 7
Operating leases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 137 236 178 267 818

$304 $572 $568 $4,366 $5,810

Potential cash requirements under existing commitments:
Letters of credit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 48 $ 48
Acquisition of dialysis centers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 105 27 30 17 179
Working capital advances to third-parties under administrative

services agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 15

$168 $ 27 $ 30 $ 17 $ 242
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Not included above are interest payments related to our credit facilities. Our credit facilities bear interest at
LIBOR plus margins ranging from 1.50% and 2.25% and are adjustable depending upon our achievement of
certain financial ratios. At December 31, 2005 our credit facilities had a combined effective interest rate of
6.62%. Interest payments are due at the maturity of specific payment period tranches within each Term Loan.
Future interest payments will depend upon the amount of principal payments, as well as changes in the LIBOR-
based interest rates and changes in the interest rate margins. Assuming no prepayments on our credit facilities
during 2006 and no changes in the effective interest rate, approximately $182 million of interest would be
required to be paid in 2006.

In addition to the above commitments, we have an agreement with Gambro AB and Gambro Renal
Products, Inc. to purchase a significant majority of our hemodialysis products, supplies and equipment over the
next ten years, in accordance with the Alliance and Product Supply Agreement that we entered into in
conjunction with our acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare. Our total expenditures on such items has been
approximately 8% of our total operating costs. The actual amount of purchases in future years under the Alliance
and Product Supply Agreement will depend upon a number of factors, including the operating and capital
requirements of our centers, the number of centers we acquire, growth of our existing centers and Gambro Renal
Products’ ability to meet our needs. See Note 3 to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the
valuation of this commitment.

Contingencies

Our revenues may be subject to adjustment as a result of (1) examination by government agencies or
contractors, for which the resolution of any matters raised may take extended periods of time to finalize;
(2) differing interpretations of government regulations by different fiscal intermediaries or regulatory authorities;
(3) differing opinions regarding a patient’s medical diagnosis or the medical necessity of services provided;
(4) retroactive applications or interpretations of governmental requirements; and (5) claims for refunds from
private payors.

On March 4, 2005, we received a subpoena from the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District
of Missouri in St. Louis. The subpoena requires production of a wide range of documents relating to our
operations, including documents related to, among other things, pharmaceutical and other services provided to
patients, relationships with pharmaceutical companies, financial relationships with physicians and joint ventures.
The subpoena covers the period from December 1, 1996 through the present. The subject matter of this subpoena
significantly overlaps with the subject matter of the investigation being conducted by the United States
Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. We have met with representatives of the government
to discuss the scope of the subpoena and are in the process of producing responsive documents. In October 2005,
we received a request for additional documents related to specific medical director and joint venture
arrangements. In February 2006, we received an additional subpoena for documents, including certain patient
records, relating to the administration and billing of EPO. We intend to continue to cooperate with the
government’s investigation. The subpoenas have been issued in connection with a joint civil and criminal
investigation. To our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated against us at this time, although we cannot
predict whether or when proceedings might be initiated or when these matters may be resolved. Compliance with
the subpoenas will continue to require management attention and legal expense. In addition, criminal proceedings
may be initiated against us in connection with this inquiry. Any negative findings could result in substantial
financial penalties against us, exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs and
criminal penalties.

On October 25, 2004, we received a subpoena from the United States Attorney’s office for the Eastern
District of New York in Brooklyn. The subpoena covers the period from 1996 to present and requires the
production of a wide range of documents relating to our operations, including DaVita Laboratory Services. The
subpoena also includes specific requests for documents relating to testing for parathyroid hormone levels or PTH,
and to products relating to vitamin D therapies. We believe that the subpoena has been issued in connection with
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a joint civil and criminal investigation. Other participants in the dialysis industry received a similar subpoena,
including Fresenius Medical Group, Renal Care Group and our recently acquired subsidiary, DVA Renal
Healthcare. To our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated against us or DVA Renal Healthcare at this
time, although we cannot predict whether or when proceedings might be initiated or when these matters may be
resolved. Compliance with the subpoenas will continue to require management attention and legal expense. In
addition, criminal proceedings may be initiated against us or DVA Renal Healthcare in connection with this
inquiry. Any negative findings could result in substantial financial penalties against us and DVA Renal
Healthcare, exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs and criminal penalties.

In February 2001, the Civil Division of the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania in Philadelphia contacted us and requested our cooperation in a review of some of our historical
practices, including billing and other operating procedures and our financial relationships with physicians. We
cooperated in this review and provided the requested records to the United States Attorney’s Office. In May
2002, we received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office and the Philadelphia office of the Office of
Inspector General of the Department of Health and Human Services, or OIG. The subpoena requires an update to
the information we provided in our response to the February 2001 request, and also seeks a wide range of
documents relating to pharmaceutical and other ancillary services provided to patients, including laboratory and
other diagnostic testing services, as well as documents relating to our financial relationships with physicians and
pharmaceutical companies. The subpoena covers the period from May 1996 to May 2002. We have provided the
documents requested and continue to cooperate with the United States Attorney’s Office and the OIG in its
investigation. If this review proceeds, the government could expand its areas of concern. To our knowledge, no
proceedings have been initiated against us at this time, although we cannot predict whether or when proceedings
might be initiated or when these matters may be resolved. Any negative findings could result in substantial
financial penalties against us and exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

We have received several informal inquiries from representatives of the New York Attorney General’s
Medicaid Fraud Control Unit, or MFCU, regarding certain aspects of the EPO practices taking place at facilities
managed by us in New York. We are cooperating with the MFCU’s informal inquiries and have provided
documents and information to the MFCU. To the best of our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated
against us and the MFCU has not indicated an intention to do so, although we cannot predict whether we will
receive further inquiries or whether or when proceedings might be initiated.

In June 2004, DVA Renal Healthcare was served with a complaint filed in the Superior Court of California
by one of its former employees that worked for its California acute services program. The complaint, which is
styled as a class action, alleges, among other things, that DVA Renal Healthcare failed to provide overtime
wages, defined rest periods and meal periods, or compensation in lieu of such provisions and failed to comply
with certain other California labor code requirements. We are evaluating the claims and intend to vigorously
defend ourselves in the matter. We also intend to vigorously oppose the certification of this matter as a class
action. At this time, we cannot estimate the range of damages, if any.

On August 8, 2005, Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Louisiana filed a complaint in the United States District
Court for the Western District of Louisiana against Gambro AB, DVA Renal Healthcare and related entities. The
plaintiff seeks to bring its claims as a class action on behalf of itself and all entities that paid any of the
defendants for health care goods and services from on or about January 1991 through at least December 2004.
The complaint alleges, among other things, damages resulting from facts and circumstances underlying DVA
Renal Healthcare’s December 2004 settlement agreement with the Department of Justice and certain agencies of
the United States Government. We are investigating these claims and intend to vigorously defend ourselves in
the matter. We also intend to vigorously oppose the certification of this matter as a class action. At this time, we
cannot estimate the range of damages, if any.

In addition to the foregoing, we are subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including
from time to time, contractual disputes and professional and general liability claims. We may also be subject to
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additional claims by commercial payors and other third parties relating to billing practices and other matters
covered by the DVA Renal Healthcare settlement agreement with the Department of Justice. We believe that the
ultimate resolution of any such pending proceedings, whether the underlying claims are covered by insurance or
not, will not have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with United
States generally accepted accounting principles. These accounting principles require us to make estimates,
judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, and
contingencies. All significant estimates, judgments and assumptions are developed based on the best information
available to us at the time made and are regularly reviewed and updated when necessary. Actual results will
generally differ from these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in our financial statements in the period
of change based upon on-going actual experience trends, or subsequent settlements and realizations depending on
the nature and predictability of the estimates and contingencies. Interim changes in estimates are applied
prospectively within annual periods. Certain accounting estimates, including those concerning revenue
recognition and provision for uncollectible accounts, impairments of long-lived assets, variable compensation
accruals, accounting for income taxes and purchase accounting valuation estimates, are considered to be critical
to evaluating and understanding our financial results because they involve inherently uncertain matters and their
application requires the most difficult and complex judgments and estimates.

Revenue recognition and accounts receivable. There are significant estimating risks associated with the
amount of revenue that we recognize for a reporting period. Payment rates are often subject to significant
uncertainties related to wide variations in the coverage terms of the more than 500 commercial healthcare plans
under which we receive payments. In addition, ongoing insurance coverage changes, geographic coverage
differences, differing interpretations of contract coverage, and other payor issues complicate the billing and
collection process. Revenue recognition uncertainties inherent in our operations are addressed in AICPA
Statement of Position (SOP) No. 00-1. As addressed in SOP No. 00-1, net revenue recognition and allowances
for uncollectible billings require the use of estimates of the amounts that will actually be realized considering,
among other items, retroactive adjustments that may be associated with regulatory reviews, audits, billing
reviews and other matters.

Revenues associated with Medicare and Medicaid programs are recognized based on a) the payment rates
that are established by statute or regulation for the portion of the payment rates paid by the government payor
(e.g. 80% for Medicare patients) and b) for the portion not paid by the primary government payor, the estimated
amounts that will ultimately be collectible from other government programs paying secondary coverage (e.g.
Medicaid secondary coverage), the patient’s commercial health plan secondary coverage, or the patient.

Commercial healthcare plans, including contracted managed-care payors, are billed at our usual and
customary rates, however, revenue is recognized based on estimated net realizable revenue for the services
provided. Net realizable revenue is estimated based on contractual terms for the patients under healthcare plans
with which we have formal agreements, non-contracted healthcare plan coverage terms if known, estimated
secondary collections, historical collection experience, historical trends of refunds and payor payment
adjustments (retractions), inefficiencies in our billing and collection processes that can result in denied claims for
payments, and regulatory compliance issues. Determining applicable primary and secondary coverage for our
more than 96,000 patients at any point in time, together with the changes in patient coverages that occur each
month, requires complex, resource-intensive processes. Collections, refunds and payor retractions typically
continue to occur for up to three years and longer after services are provided.

Our range of dialysis revenue estimating risk is generally expected to be within 1% of total revenue, which
can represent as much as 5% of operating income. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements
based on on-going actual experience trends, or subsequent settlements and realizations depending on the nature
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and predictability of the estimates and contingencies. Changes in revenue estimates for prior periods are
separately disclosed and reported if material to the current reporting period and longer term trend analyses.

Lab service revenues for current period dates of services are recognized at the estimated net realizable
amounts to be received.

Impairments of long-lived assets. We account for impairment of long-lived assets, which include property
and equipment, investments, amortizable intangible assets and goodwill, in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets or SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets, as applicable. Impairment reviews are performed whenever a change in condition occurs
which indicates that the carrying amounts of assets may not be recoverable, and at least annually for goodwill.
Such changes include changes in our business strategies and plans, changes in the quality or structure of our
relationships with our partners and deteriorating operating performance of individual dialysis centers. We use a
variety of factors to assess the realizable value of assets depending on their nature and use. Such assessments are
primarily based upon the sum of expected future undiscounted net cash flows over the expected period the asset
will be utilized, as well as market values and conditions. The computation of expected future undiscounted net
cash flows can be complex and involves a number of subjective assumptions. Any changes in these factors or
assumptions could impact the assessed value of an asset and result in an impairment charge equal to the amount
by which its carrying value exceeds its actual or estimated fair value.

Accounting for income taxes. We estimate our income tax provision to recognize our tax expense for the
current year and our deferred tax liabilities and assets for future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in our financial statements, measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply in the periods
when the deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be realized. Deferred tax assets are assessed based upon
the likelihood of recoverability from future taxable income and, to the extent that recovery is not likely, a valuation
allowance is established. The allowance is regularly reviewed and updated for changes in circumstances that would
cause a change in judgment about the realizability of the related deferred tax assets. See Note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. These calculations and assessments involve complex estimates and judgments because the
ultimate tax outcome can be uncertain or future events unpredictable.

Variable compensation accruals. We estimate variable compensation accruals quarterly based upon the
annual amounts expected to be earned and paid out resulting from the achievement of certain teammate-specific
and/or corporate financial and operating goals. Our estimates, which include compensation incentives for
bonuses, awards and benefit plan contributions, are updated periodically based on changes in our economic
condition or cash flows that could ultimately impact the actual final award. Actual results may vary due to the
subjectivity involved in anticipating fulfillment of specific and/or corporate goals, as well as the final
determination and approval of amounts by our Board of Directors.

Purchase accounting valuation estimates. The valuation of the tangible and intangible assets and liabilities
acquired or assumed in connection with the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition required numerous assessments
and assumptions, including those concerning dialysis industry trends, our company’s business strategies and
plans, the strategies of present or potential competitors, the quality of our continuing relationships with
physicians and teammates and the likely effects of changes in those relationships, and other competitive and
market conditions including those that involve dialysis product suppliers. These assumptions include expected
outcomes under different acquisition agreement terms, and as a result, involve estimates of which the ultimate
accuracy will never be known. These assumptions can have a material effect on our balance sheet valuations and
the related amount of depreciation and amortization expense that will be recognized in the future. Long-lived
tangible and intangible assets will be subject to our regular ongoing impairment assessments.
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Significant new accounting standards

Effective January 1, 2006 we adopted SFAS Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, that amended
FASB Statements No. 123 and 95 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees. This standard requires us to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award
of equity instruments, such as stock options, based on the grant-date fair value of the award and to recognize such
cost over the requisite period during which an employee provides service. The grant-date fair value will be
determined using option-pricing models adjusted for unique characteristics of the equity instruments. The
standard also addresses the accounting for transactions that involve the creation of a liability in exchange for
goods or services that are based on the fair value of its equity instruments or that may be settled through the
issuance of such equity instruments. The standard does not change the accounting for transactions of equity
instruments issued for services to non-employees or the accounting for employee stock ownership plans. The
standard also requires that the tax benefits realized from stock option exercises in excess of the stock-based
compensation expenses recognizable for financial statement purposes be reported as a cash flows from financing
activities rather than as an operating cash flow as currently required. This would reduce net operating cash flows
and increase net financing cash flows upon adoption. We currently expect that our pretax stock option expense
will be in the range of $20 million to $30 million, significantly dependent on the timing and amounts of grants in
2006, as well as the Company’s stock price at those future dates.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial
reporting designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and which includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

During the last fiscal year, the Company conducted an evaluation, under the oversight of the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. This evaluation was completed based on the criteria established in the
report titled “Internal Control—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Based upon our evaluation under the COSO framework, we have concluded that the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2005.

In conducting its evaluation, management’s scope excluded the operations of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc.
(formerly known as Gambro Healthcare, Inc.) as permitted by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The
Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of DVA Renal Healthcare effective October 1, 2005. At
December 31, 2005, internal controls over financial reporting of DVA Renal Healthcare associated with total
assets of approximately $900 million and total revenue of approximately $470 million were excluded from
management’s assessment of the system of internal control over financial reporting of the Company.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have also been audited and reported on by our
independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, who issued an attestation report on management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, which is included in
this Annual Report.

21



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
DaVita Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DaVita Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2005, and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of DaVita Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005, and 2004, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of DaVita Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 2, 2006 expressed
an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over
financial reporting.

Seattle, Washington
March 2, 2006
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
DaVita Inc:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying management’s report on internal
control over financial reporting, that DaVita Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). DaVita Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that DaVita Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, DaVita Inc. maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

The Company acquired DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc. (formerly known as Gambro Healthcare, Inc.) effective
October 1, 2005 and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005, DVA Renal Healthcare Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting associated
with total assets of approximately $900 million and total revenue of approximately $470 million included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting of the Company also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over
financial reporting of DVA Renal Healthcare Inc.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of DaVita Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and
2004 and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005, and our report dated March 2,
2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Seattle, Washington
March 2, 2006
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Consolidated Statements of Income
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,973,918 $ 2,177,330 $ 1,919,278

Operating expenses and charges:
Patient care costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,035,243 1,470,175 1,287,652
General and administrative . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 272,463 192,082 159,628
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116,836 82,912 71,448
Provision for uncollectible accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,916 38,786 33,959
Minority interests and equity income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,089 12,249 6,660

Total operating expenses and charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,508,547 1,796,204 1,559,347

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 465,371 381,126 359,931

Debt expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (139,586) (52,411) (66,821)
Swap valuation gain, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,548
Refinancing charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8,170) (26,501)
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,934 4,125 3,042

Income from continuing operations before income taxes . . . . . . . 331,097 332,840 269,651
Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123,675 128,332 105,173

Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 207,422 204,508 164,478

Discontinued operations
Income from operations of discontinued operations,

net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,157 17,746 11,313
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations,

net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,064

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 228,643 $ 222,254 $ 175,791

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations net of

tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.06 $ 2.07 $ 1.74

Basic earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.27 $ 2.25 $ 1.86

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations . . . . $ 1.99 $ 1.99 $ 1.56

Diluted earnings per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.20 $ 2.16 $ 1.66

Weighted average shares for earnings per share:
Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100,762,000 98,727,000 94,346,000

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104,068,000 102,861,000 113,760,000

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

December 31,

2005 2004

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 431,811 $ 251,979
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $138,598 and $58,166 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 853,560 453,295
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69,130 31,843
Other receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 116,620 47,219
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38,463 5,791
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 144,824 78,593

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,654,408 868,720
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 750,078 412,064
Amortizable intangibles, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 235,944 60,719
Investments in third-party dialysis businesses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,181 3,332
Other long-term assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,768 10,898
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,594,383 1,156,226

$6,279,762 $2,511,959

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 212,049 $ 96,231
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 381,964 157,214
Accrued compensation and benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 231,994 133,919
Current portion of long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71,767 53,364
Income taxes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 91,959 1,007

Total current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 989,733 441,735
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,085,435 1,322,468
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26,416 22,570
Alliance and product supply agreement and other intangibles, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 163,431
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 75,499 148,859
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 88,639 53,193
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock ($0.001 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued)
Common stock ($0.001 par value, 195,000,000 shares authorized; 134,862,283

and 134,862,283 shares issued) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 135 135
Additional paid-in capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 569,751 542,714
Retained earnings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 839,930 611,287
Treasury stock, at cost (32,927,026 and 36,295,339 shares) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (574,013) (632,732)
Accumulated comprehensive income valuations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,806 1,730

Total shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 850,609 523,134

$6,279,762 $2,511,959

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
(dollars in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 228,643 $ 222,254 $ 175,791
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 119,719 86,666 74,687
Stock options, principally tax benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41,837 42,770 20,180
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (63,357) 29,115 20,914
Minority interests in income of consolidated subsidiaries . . 24,714 15,135 8,908
Distributions to minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16,246) (10,461) (7,663)
Equity investment income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (1,406) (1,441) (1,596)
Loss on divestitures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 921 764 2,130
Gain on discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16,777)
Non-cash debt expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,157 2,088 3,124
Refinancing charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,170 26,501
Swap valuation gain . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,548)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:

Accounts receivable and other receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (62,021) (59,263) (61,550)
Medicare lab recoveries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19,000 (19,000)
Inventories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,980 4,257 3,159
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,893 (381) 6,884
Other long-term assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,039) 3,345 4,692
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28,869 17,764 (6,875)
Accrued compensation and benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,664 32,899 5,821
Other current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 72,615 42,784 9,958
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 90,958 (25,995) 17,810
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,192) (1,355) 9,773

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . . . . . . . . . 485,554 419,945 293,648

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions of property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (161,365) (128,328) (100,272)
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,202,404) (266,265) (99,645)
Proceeds from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 298,849 1,223 2,275
Investments in and advances to affiliates, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,308 14,344 4,456
Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (751) (635) (790)

Net cash used in investing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,045,363) (379,661) (193,976)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,832,557 4,444,160 4,766,276
Payments on long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,058,951) (4,236,861) (4,797,994)
Debt redemption premium . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14,473)
Deferred financing costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (77,884) (4,153) (4,193)
Purchase of treasury stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (96,540) (107,162)
Stock option exercises . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43,919 43,432 23,056

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . 2,739,641 150,038 (134,490)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179,832 190,322 (34,818)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 251,979 61,657 96,475

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 431,811 $ 251,979 $ 61,657

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
(dollars and shares in thousands)

Common stock Additional
paid-in
capital

Retained
earnings

Treasury stock

Accumulated
comprehensive

income
valuations TotalShares Amount Share Amount

Balance at December 31, 2002 . . . . . . . . . . 133,312 $133 $519,370 $213,292 (42,324) $(662,531) — $ 70,264

Comprehensive income:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 175,791 175,791
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps . . . . . $ (924) (924)

Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . 174,867

Shares issued upon conversion of debt . . . . 14,076 7,326 114,700 128,776
Shares issued to employees and others . . . . 63 873 873
Deferred stock unit shares issued . . . . . . . . (220) 49 770 550
Stock options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,431 2 (14,704) 2,060 33,225 18,523
Income tax benefit on stock options

exercised and stock award expense . . . . . 20,204 20,204
Stock option expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (24) (24)
Treasury stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (5,163) (107,162) (107,162)

Balance at December 31, 2003 . . . . . . . . . . 134,806 $135 $539,575 $389,083 (38,052) $(620,998) $ (924) $306,871

Comprehensive income:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 222,254 222,254
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps . . . . 2,654 2,654

Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . 224,908

Shares issued to employees and others . . . . 56 959 959
Restricted stock unit shares issued . . . . . . . (936) 161 2,629 1,693
Stock options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (39,497) 4,946 82,177 42,680
Income tax benefit on stock options

exercised and stock award expense . . . . . 42,770 42,770
Payment of stock split fractional shares and

related costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (157) (50) (207)
Treasury stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,350) (96,540) (96,540)

Balance at December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . 134,862 $135 $542,714 $611,287 (36,295) $(632,732) $ 1,730 $523,134

Comprehensive income:
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 228,643 228,643
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps . . . . 16,821 16,821
Less reclassification of net swap valuation

gains into net income, net of tax . . . . . . . (3,745) (3,745)

Total comprehensive income . . . . . . . . . . . 241,719

Shares issued to employees and others . . . . 657 64 1,118 1,775
Restricted stock unit shares issued . . . . . . . (492) 28 492 —
Stock options exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14,965) 3,276 57,109 42,144
Income tax benefit on stock options

exercised and stock award expense . . . . . 41,837 41,837
Payment of stock split fractional shares and

related costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
Treasury stock purchases . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Balance at December 31, 2005 . . . . . . . . . . 134,862 $135 $569,751 $839,930 (32,927) $(574,013) $14,806 $850,609

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1. Organization and summary of significant accounting policies

Organization

DaVita Inc. operates kidney dialysis centers and provides related medical services primarily in dialysis
centers and in contracted hospitals across the United States. These operations represent a single business
segment. On October 5, 2005, the Company completed its acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc. (formerly
known as Gambro Healthcare, Inc.) from Gambro Inc. under the Stock Purchase Agreement dated December 6,
2004, for approximately $3.06 billion. DVA Renal Healthcare was one of the largest dialysis service providers in
the United States, operating 566 outpatient dialysis centers, serving approximately 43,000 patients and generating
annual revenues of approximately $2 billion. In order for the Company to complete the acquisition of DVA
Renal Healthcare, it was required to divest a number of outpatient dialysis centers and to terminate two
management services agreements. See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of these
transactions.

The operating results of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc. are included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements from October 1, 2005. The operating results of the historical DaVita divested centers and its one
management services agreement are reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

All share and per share data prior to 2005 have been adjusted to retroactively reflect the effects of a
three-for-two stock split in the form of a stock dividend in the second quarter of 2004.

Basis of presentation

These consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with United
States generally accepted accounting principles. The financial statements include the Company’s subsidiaries and
partnerships that are wholly-owned, majority-owned, or in which the Company maintains a controlling financial
interest. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Non-consolidated equity
investments are recorded under the equity or cost method of accounting as appropriate. Prior year balances and
amounts have been classified to conform to the current year presentation.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets, liabilities and contingencies. Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates,
such estimates are developed based on the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. All significant assumptions and estimates underlying the reported amounts in the
financial statements and accompanying notes are regularly reviewed and updated. Changes in estimates are reflected
in the financial statements based upon on-going actual experience trends, or subsequent settlements and realizations
depending on the nature and predictability of the estimates and contingencies. Interim changes in estimates related
to annual operating costs are applied prospectively within annual periods.

The most significant assumptions and estimates underlying these financial statements and accompanying
notes involve revenue recognition and provisions for uncollectible accounts, impairments and valuation
adjustments, accounting for income taxes and variable compensation accruals. Specific estimating risks and
contingencies are further addressed within these notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Net operating revenues and accounts receivable

Revenues associated with Medicare and Medicaid programs are recognized based on a) the payment rates
that are established by statute or regulation for the portion of the payment rates paid by the government payor
(e.g., 80% for Medicare patients) and b) for the portion not paid by the primary government payor, the estimated
amounts that will ultimately be collectible from other government programs paying secondary coverage (e.g.,
Medicaid secondary coverage), the patient’s commercial health plan secondary coverage, or the patient.
Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based on contractual terms for the patients
under healthcare plans with which we have formal agreements, commercial health plan coverage terms if known,
estimated secondary collections, historical collection experience, historical trends of refunds and payor payment
adjustments (retractions), inefficiencies in our billing and collection processes that can result in denied claims for
payments, and regulatory compliance issues.

Operating revenues are recognized in the period services are provided. Revenues consist primarily of
payments from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis and ancillary services provided to
patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for our dialysis treatment and other patient services;
however, actual collectible revenue is normally at a discount to the fee schedule.

Commercial revenue recognition involves substantial estimating risks. With many larger, commercial
insurers the Company has several different contracts and payment arrangements, and these contracts often
include only a subset of the Company’s centers. It is often not possible to determine which contract, if any,
should be applied prior to billing. In addition, for services provided by non-contracted centers, final collection
may require specific negotiation of a payment amount, typically at a significant discount from the Company’s
usual and customary rates.

Services covered by Medicare and Medicaid are less subject to estimating risk. Both Medicare and Medicaid
rates use prospective payment methods established in advance with definitive terms. Medicare payments for bad
debt claims are subject to individual center profitability, as established by cost reports, and require evidence of
collection efforts. As a result, billing and collection of Medicare bad debt claims are often delayed significantly;
and final payment is subject to audit. Medicaid payments, when Medicaid coverage is secondary, may also be
difficult to estimate. For many states, Medicaid payment terms and methods differ from Medicare, and may
prevent accurate estimation of individual payment amounts prior to billing.

Revenue recognition uncertainties inherent in the Company’s operations are addressed in AICPA Statement
of Position (SOP) NO. 00-1 Auditing Health Care Third-Party Revenues and Related Receivables. As addressed
in SOP No. 00-1, net revenue recognition and allowances for uncollectible billings require the use of estimates of
the amounts that will actually be realized considering, among other items, retroactive adjustments that may be
associated with regulatory reviews, audits, billing reviews and other matters.

Our range of revenue estimating risk is generally expected to be within 1% of total revenue. Changes in
revenue estimates for prior periods are separately disclosed if material.

Management and administrative support services are provided to dialysis centers and physician practices not
owned by the Company or where the Company has a minority ownership interest. The management fees are
principally determined as a percentage of the managed operations’ revenues or cash collections and in some
cases an additional component based upon a percentage of operating income. Management fees are included in
net operating revenues as earned.

Other income, net

Other income includes interest income on cash investments and other non-operating gains and losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less at date of purchase.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market and consist principally of
pharmaceuticals and dialysis related supplies.

Assets of discontinued operations

Assets to be disposed of that meet all the criteria to be classified as held for sale as set forth in SFAS
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets are included in other current assets.
Assets held for sale are not depreciated while they are classified as held for sale.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and is further
reduced by any impairment. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation and
amortization expenses are computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets estimated as
follows: buildings, 20 to 40 years; leasehold improvements, the shorter of their economic useful life or the
expected lease term; and equipment and information systems, principally 3 to 8 years. Disposition gains and
losses are included in current operating expenses.

Amortizable intangibles

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities include non-competition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, hospital acute services contracts, deferred debt issuance costs and the Gambro Alliance and Product
Supply Agreement, each of which have determinate useful lives. Non-competition and similar agreements are
amortized over the terms of the agreements, typically ten years, using the straight-line method. Lease agreements
and hospital acute service contracts are amortized straight-line over the term of the lease and the contract period,
respectively. Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized to debt expense over the term of the related debt using
the effective interest method. The Alliance and Product Supply Agreement intangible liability is being amortized
straight-line over the term of the agreement, which is ten years.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase cost of acquired businesses and the fair value of
the identifiable tangible and intangible net assets acquired. Goodwill is not amortized, but is assessed for
valuation impairment as circumstances warrant and at least annually. An impairment charge would be recorded
to the extent the book value of goodwill exceeds its fair value. The Company operates as one reporting unit for
goodwill impairment assessments.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets, including property and equipment, investments, and amortizable intangible assets, are
reviewed for possible impairment whenever significant events or changes in circumstances indicate that an
impairment may have occurred, including changes in our business strategy and plans, changes in the quality or
structure of our relationships with our partners and deteriorating operating performance of individual dialysis
centers. An impairment is indicated when the sum of the expected future undiscounted net cash flows identifiable
to an asset or asset group is less than its carrying value. Impairment losses are determined from actual or
estimated fair values, which are based on market values, net realizable values or projections of discounted net
cash flows, as appropriate. Impairment charges are included in operating expenses. Interest is not accrued on
impaired loans unless the estimated recovery amounts justify such accruals.
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Income taxes

Federal and state income taxes are computed at current enacted tax rates, less tax credits. Taxes are adjusted
both for items that do not have tax consequences and for the cumulative effect of any changes in tax rates from
those previously used to determine deferred tax assets or liabilities. Tax provisions include amounts that are
currently payable, changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities that arise because of temporary differences
between the timing of when items of income and expense are recognized for financial reporting and income tax
purposes, which are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply in the periods when the
deferred tax liability or asset is expected to be realized, and any changes in the valuation allowance caused by a
change in judgment about the realizability of the related deferred tax assets.

Minority interests

Consolidated income is reduced by the proportionate amount of income accruing to minority interests.
Minority interests represent the equity interests of third-party owners in consolidated entities which are not
wholly-owned. As of December 31, 2005, third parties held minority ownership interests in 67 consolidated
entities.

Stock-based compensation

Stock-based compensation for employees has been determined in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, as allowed under SFAS No. 123 Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation. Under that standard, stock option grants to employees do not result in an expense
if the exercise price is at least equal to the market price at the date of grant. Stock-based compensation expense is
also measured and recorded for certain modifications to stock awards as required under FASB Interpretation
No. 44 Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation. Restricted stock units are valued at
the closing stock price on the date of grant and are amortized over the respective vesting periods.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Pro forma net income and earnings per share. If the Company had adopted the fair value-based
compensation expense provisions of SFAS No. 123 upon the issuance of that standard, net income and net
income per share would be equal to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year ended December 31,

Pro forma—As if all stock options were expensed 2005 2004 2003

Net income:
As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,643 $222,254 $175,791
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net

income, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,112 1,168 1,036
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense under the fair

value-based method, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12,180) (10,109) (9,554)

Pro forma net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $218,575 $213,313 $167,273

Pro forma basic earnings per share:
Pro forma net income for basic earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . . . . . $218,575 $213,313 $167,273

Weighted average shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100,713 98,694 94,253
Vested restricted stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 33 93

Weighted average shares for basic earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . . 100,762 98,727 94,346

Basic net income per share—Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.17 $ 2.16 $ 1.77

Basic net income per share—As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.27 $ 2.25 $ 1.86

Pro forma diluted earnings per share:
Pro forma net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $218,575 $213,313 $167,273
Debt expense savings, net of tax, from assumed conversion of convertible

debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,011

Pro forma net income for diluted earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . . . $218,575 $213,313 $180,284

Weighted average shares outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100,713 98,694 94,253
Vested restricted stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 33 93
Assumed incremental shares from stock plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,167 4,271 4,256
Assumed incremental shares from convertible debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,926

Weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . 103,929 102,998 113,528

Diluted net income per share—Pro forma . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.10 $ 2.07 $ 1.59

Diluted net income per share—As reported . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.20 $ 2.16 $ 1.66

The fair values of stock option grants were estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following assumptions: weighted average expected volatility of 27% for 2005, 37% for
2004 and 40% for 2003, risk-free interest rates of 4.11%, 2.91%, and 2.07% for 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively, weighted average expected lives of 3.25 years for 2005 and 3.5 years for 2004 and 2003, and
dividend yield of 0% for all years presented.
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New accounting standard

Effective January 1, 2006 the Company adopted SFAS Statement No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, that
amended FASB Statements No. 123 and 95 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees. This standard requires the Company to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange
for an award of equity instruments, such as stock options, based on the grant-date fair value of the award and to
recognize such cost over the requisite period during which an employee provides service. The grant-date fair
value will be determined using option-pricing models adjusted for unique characteristics of the equity
instruments. The standard also addresses the accounting for transactions that involve the creation of a liability in
exchange for goods or services that are based on the fair value of its equity instruments or that may be settled
through the issuance of such equity instruments. The standard does not change the accounting for transactions of
equity instruments issued for services to non-employees or the accounting for employee stock ownership plans.
The standard also requires that the tax benefits realized from stock option exercises in excess of stock-based
compensation expense recognizable for financial statement purposes be reported as cash flows from financing
activities rather than as an operating cash flow as currently required. This would reduce net operating cash flows
and increase net financing cash flows upon adoption. The Company currently estimates that the adoption of this
standard will increase the Company’s reported pre-tax operating expenses for 2006 by approximately $20,000 to
$30,000, or approximately $12,000 and $18,000 after tax.

Interest rate swap agreements

The Company has from time to time entered into interest rate swap agreements as a means of managing its
exposure to variable-based interest rate changes. These agreements are not held for trading or speculative
purposes, and have the economic effect of converting portions of our variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The
agreements are highly effective cash flow hedges, although certain portions of the swap agreements were
ineffective as a result of changes in the Company’s debt structure during 2005, which partial ineffectiveness is
included in net income. Any gains or losses resulting from changes in the fair values of effective swaps are
reported in other comprehensive income until such time as the agreements are either dedesignated, sold or
terminated, at which time the amounts are reclassified into net income. Net amounts paid or received under the
effective swaps have been reflected as adjustments to interest expense.

2. Earnings per share

Basic net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per share includes the dilutive effect of stock options and
unvested restricted stock units (under the treasury stock method) and convertible debt (under the if-converted
method).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

The reconciliations of the numerators and denominators used to calculate basic and diluted net income per
share are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

(in thousands, except per share)

Basic:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $207,422 $204,508 $164,478

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,157 17,746 11,313
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,064

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,643 $222,254 $175,791

Weighted average shares outstanding during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100,713 98,694 94,253
Vested restricted stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 33 93

Weighted average shares for basic earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . . 100,762 98,727 94,346

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.06 $ 2.07 $ 1.74
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.13 0.18 0.12
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.08

Basic net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.27 $ 2.25 $ 1.86

Diluted:
Income from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $207,422 $204,508 $164,478

Debt expense savings, net of tax, from assumed conversion of
convertible debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,011

Income from continuing operations as adjusted, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . $207,422 $204,508 $177,489
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13,157 17,746 11,313
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,064

Net income for diluted earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,643 $222,254 $188,802

Weighted average shares outstanding during the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100,713 98,694 94,253
Vested restricted stock units . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 33 93
Assumed incremental shares from stock plans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,306 4,134 4,488
Assumed incremental shares from convertible debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,926

Weighted average shares for diluted earnings per share calculation . . . . . . . . . 104,068 102,861 113,760

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . $ 1.99 $ 1.99 $ 1.56
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.13 0.17 0.10
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.08

Diluted net income per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2.20 $ 2.16 $ 1.66

Options to purchase 2,419,750 shares at $45.60 to $52.81 per share, 178,369 shares at $30.87 to $39.62 per
share and 261,803 shares at $18.73 to $26.23 per share were excluded from the diluted earnings per share
calculations for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, because they were anti-dilutive. The calculation of diluted
earnings per share assumes conversion of both the 55⁄8% and 7% convertible subordinated notes for the pro-rata
periods such notes were outstanding in 2003.
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3. Acquisitions and divestitures

Acquisitions

The total acquisition amounts were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Cash paid, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,202,404 $266,265 $ 99,645
Deferred purchase payments and acquisition obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9,331 429 5,146

Aggregate purchase cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,211,735 $266,694 $104,791

Number of chronic dialysis centers acquired (before divestitures) . . . . . . . . . 609 51 27

Aggregate purchase costs of acquired dialysis centers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,211,078 $262,458 $ 84,102

Acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc.

On October 5, 2005, the Company acquired all of the outstanding common stock of DVA Renal
Healthcare, Inc. (formerly known as of Gambro Healthcare, Inc.) under the Stock Purchase Agreement dated
December 6, 2004, for $3,060,000 in cash subject to final determination of a certain tax election as discussed
below. DVA Renal Healthcare was one of the largest dialysis service providers in the United States. The
purchase price reflects (i) the cash purchase price of approximately $1,800,000 for all of the outstanding common
stock of DVA Renal Healthcare and (ii) the assumption and payment of approximately $1,260,000 of DVA Renal
Healthcare indebtedness. The Company has also incurred approximately $29,000 in acquisition related costs
through December 31, 2005, and additional transaction and severance costs will be incurred. In addition, if the
Company makes an election pursuant to section 338(h)(10) of the Internal Revenue Code as permitted under the
Stock Purchase Agreement, the Company would be required to make an additional cash payment to Gambro Inc.,
which the Company currently estimates at approximately $170,000.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of this acquisition. These initial allocations of purchase cost are recorded at fair value based upon the best
information available to management and are finalized when identified pre-acquisition contingencies have been
resolved. The fair values of property and equipment and intangible assets and liabilities were valued by an
independent third party. Specific assets and liabilities, including certain identified intangibles, certain properties
and leasehold improvements and settlement liabilities, as well as unresolved contingencies (see Note 17) remain
outstanding that require the Company to obtain additional information in order to properly assess and finalize the
potential impact, if any, to the consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect the impact of
such additional adjustments to be material. Any additional valuation adjustments that would need to be recorded
will be offset with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill.

The aggregate purchase cost allocations were as follows:

Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 490,090
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 313,315
Other long-term assets and intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 148,875
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,546,565
Current liabilities assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (272,420)
Alliance and Product Supply agreement and other intangible liabilities . . . . . . (168,287)
Other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (14,643)

Aggregate purchase costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,043,495

Total consideration paid to purchase DVA Renal Healthcare also included imputed interest of $2,818, which
is included in debt expense.
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(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

The amortizable intangible assets acquired included $87,000 for a non-compete agreement with
Gambro AB, other non-compete agreements totaling $13,200, lease contracts for $12,000 and other hospital
acute service contracts were valued at a liability of $6,187, see Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
The Alliance and Product Supply Agreement is discussed below and is being amortized over the term of the
agreement, which is ten years. Other amortizable intangible assets and liabilities are amortized on a straight line
method over a weighted-average amortization period of 8.1 years. Of the total amount of goodwill,
approximately $350,000 is expected to be deductible for tax purposes over the next 15 years, which could
increase upon the Company making a 338(h)(10) tax election, which would also require an additional payment to
Gambro Inc.

No patient relationship intangible asset or liability apart from goodwill exists in connection with the
acquisition. Neither DVA Renal Healthcare nor the Company has entered into contractual relationships with
patients that obligate either patients or the Company for services, and no separable patient relationship intangible
exists that can be sold, transferred or licensed. Total patient turnover averages more than 30% per year.
Approximately 87% of patients’ treatments are paid for by government programs, principally Medicare, and
under Medicare regulations the Company cannot promote, develop or maintain any kind of contractual
relationship with patients which would directly or indirectly obligate a patient to use or continue to use the
Company’s services, or which would give the Company any rights other than those related to collecting
payments for services provided.

The operating results of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc. are included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements from October 1, 2005.

In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company assumed all of DVA Renal Healthcare’s debt obligations,
consisting principally of intercompany debt which was repaid at closing, as well as its commitments associated
with operating leases, letters of credit and potential obligations to purchase the third-party interests in certain of
its joint ventures. These potential obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, are
exercisable at the third-party owners’ discretion, and would require the Company to purchase the minority
owners’ interest at either the appraised fair market value or a predetermined multiple of cash flow, earnings, or
revenues. At the date of acquisition, DVA Renal Healthcare had total operating lease commitments of
approximately $345,000 expiring within the next 10 years, letters of credit of approximately $27,000, and total
potential obligations under put provisions of approximately $33,000, all of which were exercisable within one
year.

DVA Renal Healthcare is subject to a five-year Corporate Integrity Agreement in connection with its
December 2004 settlement with the U.S. Government that imposes significant specific compliance operating and
reporting requirements, and requires an annual audit by an independent reporting organization.

In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company entered into an Alliance and Product Supply Agreement (the
Supply Agreement) with Gambro AB and Gambro Renal Products, Inc. The Supply Agreement has an initial term
of seven years and will automatically renew for three additional one-year periods if the Company has not negotiated
the terms of an extension during the initial term period. Under the Supply Agreement, the Company is committed to
purchase a significant majority of its hemodialysis products, supplies and equipment at fixed prices, unless such
products are clinically deficient. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company’s total expenditures on such
items was approximately 8% of its total operating costs. Because the Supply Agreement will result in higher costs
for most of the products covered by the Supply Agreement than would be otherwise available to the Company, the
Supply Agreement represents an intangible liability valued at $162,100, which will be amortized over the term of
the Supply Agreement.
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Other Acquisitions

During 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company acquired other dialysis businesses consisting of 54 centers, 51
centers and 27 centers for a total of $168,240, $266,694, and $104,791 respectively in cash and deferred purchase
price obligations. The assets and liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair market values
at the dates of the acquisitions and are included in the Company’s financial statements and operating results from
the designated effective dates of the acquisitions.

The initial purchase cost allocations for acquired businesses are recorded at fair values based upon the best
information available to management and are finalized when identified pre-acquisition contingencies have been
resolved and other information arranged to be obtained has been received. Adjustments to purchase accounting
for prior acquisitions and payments for acquisitions in process have been included in the periods recognized.
Final allocations have not differed materially from the initial allocations.

The aggregate purchase cost allocations were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Tangible assets, principally leasehold improvements and equipment . . . . . . . . $ 17,381 $ 42,155 $ 26,678
Amortizable intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,631 19,471 7,273
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 139,485 222,424 70,700
Liabilities assumed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,257) (17,356) 140

Aggregate purchase cost . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $168,240 $266,694 $104,791

Amortizable intangible assets acquired during 2005, 2004 and 2003 had weighted-average estimated useful
lives of ten, nine and ten years, respectively. The total amount of goodwill deductible for tax purposes associated
with 2005 acquisitions is approximately $140 million.

Discontinued operations

In accordance with a consent order issued by the Federal Trade Commission on October 4, 2005, the
Company was required to divest a total of 69 outpatient dialysis centers and to terminate two management
services agreements in order to complete the acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare. In conjunction with the
consent order, on October 6, 2005, the Company and DVA Renal Healthcare completed the sale of 70 outpatient
dialysis centers to Renal Advantage Inc., formerly known as RenalAmerica, Inc. and also completed the sale of
one other center to a separate physician group, and terminated the two management services agreements. In
addition, effective January 1, 2006, the Company completed the sale of three additional centers to Renal
Advantage, Inc. that were pending state regulatory approval in Illinois. The Company received total cash
consideration of approximately $330,000 for all of the centers divested and used approximately $13,000 to
purchase the minority interest ownership of a joint venture, to distribute a minority owner’s share of the sale
proceeds, and to pay related transaction costs. The Company also anticipates paying income taxes of
approximately $90,000 on these divestitures. As part of this transaction, Renal Advantage assumed specific
liabilities related to the centers, and all other liabilities were retained by the Company. The Company recorded a
gain of approximately $8,064, net of tax during the year ended December 31, 2005 related to the divestiture of its
historical DaVita centers. Included in the gain on divestitures is the recognition of a $26,500 tax valuation
allowance benefit resulting from the utilization of prior years’ capital losses offsetting the taxable gain on sale,
and income tax expense of $27,133 relating to the write-off of book goodwill not deductible for tax purposes.

The results of operations of the historical DaVita outpatient dialysis centers and the held for sale centers, are
reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented.
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The results from discontinued operations were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $98,454 $121,266 $97,139
Income before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21,534 29,044 18,615
Income tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,377 11,298 7,302

Income from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $13,157 $ 17,746 $11,313

Net assets of discontinued operations sold were as follows:

Current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 3,075
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17,735
Amortizable intangibles, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 676
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 114,100
Liabilities and minority interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,819)

Net assets from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $132,767

Pro forma financial information

The following summary, prepared on a pro forma basis, combines the results of operations as if the
acquisitions and divestitures in 2005 and 2004 had been consummated as of the beginning of 2004, after
including the impact of certain adjustments such as amortization of intangibles, interest expense on acquisition
financing and income tax effects.

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004

(unaudited)
Pro forma net revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $4,440,203 $4,117,461
Pro forma net income (loss), including discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 277,254 (41,245)
Pro forma income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 242,253 (74,977)
Pro forma basic net income (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.75 (.42)
Pro forma diluted net income (loss) per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.66 (.40)
Pro forma basic income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.40 (.76)
Pro forma diluted income (loss) from continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.33 (.73)

4. Accounts receivable

Less than 10% of the accounts receivable balances as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 were more than six
months old, and there were no significant balances over one year old. Less than 1% of our accounts receivable
relate to collections from patients. Collections are principally from Medicare and Medicaid programs and
commercial insurance plans.
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5. Other receivables

Other receivables were comprised of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004

Supplier rebates and other non-trade receivables . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 73,597 $26,032
Medicare bad debt claims . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,100 8,800
Transition services receivable associated with divested centers . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,870
Operating advances under management services agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,053 12,387

$116,620 $47,219

Operating advances under management services agreements are generally unsecured.

6. Other current assets

Other current assets consist principally of prepaid expenses, assets held for sale and deposits.

7. Property and equipment

Property and equipment were comprised of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004

Land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 14,859 $ 750
Buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35,148 4,868
Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 521,464 329,382
Equipment and information systems . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 552,199 405,022
New centers and capital asset projects in progress . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,683 19,541

1,155,353 759,563
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (405,275) (347,499)

$ 750,078 $ 412,064

Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment was $105,254, $71,495 and $61,241 for
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Interest on debt incurred during the development of new centers and other capital asset projects is
capitalized as a component of the asset cost based on the respective in-process capital asset balances. Interest
capitalized was $1,912, $1,078 and $1,523 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

8. Amortizable intangibles

Amortizable intangible assets were comprised of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004

Noncompetition agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 246,336 $132,503
Lease agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,974
Deferred debt issuance costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 77,884 14,005

336,194 146,508
Less accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (100,250) (85,789)

Total amortizable intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 235,944 $ 60,719
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Amortizable intangible liabilities were comprised of the following:

December 31,
2005

Alliance and Product Supply Agreement commitment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $162,100
Hospital acute services contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,187

168,287
Less accumulated amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,856)

$163,431

Net amortization expense from noncompetition and other agreements and the amortizable intangible
liabilities was $11,582, $11,417 and $10,207 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Lease agreements are
amortized to rent expense, which was $690 in 2005. Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized to debt expense
as described in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Scheduled amortization charges from intangible assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2005 were as
follows:

Noncompetition and
other agreements

Deferred debt
issuance costs

Alliance and
Product Supply

Agreement liability

2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $26,753 $10,936 $(16,210)
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,199 10,763 (16,210)
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18,259 10,554 (16,210)
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,065 10,322 (16,210)
2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,226 10,016 (16,210)
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60,652 20,816 (76,998)

See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding the intangibles acquired in connection with our
acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare, Inc.

9. Investments in third-party dialysis businesses

Investments in third-party dialysis businesses and related advances were $3,181 and $3,332 at December 31,
2005 and 2004. During 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company recognized income of $1,406, $1,441 and $1,596,
respectively, relating to investments in non-consolidated minority-owned businesses under the equity method.
These amounts are included as a reduction to minority interests in the consolidated statements of income.

10. Goodwill

Changes in the book value of goodwill were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004

Balance at January 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,156,226 $ 934,188
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,686,050 222,424
Divestitures . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (247,893) (386)

Balance at December 31 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $3,594,383 $1,156,226
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11. Other liabilities

Other accrued liabilities were comprised of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004

Payor deferrals and refunds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $206,758 $ 94,566
Insurance and self-insurance accruals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,255 21,847
Deferred revenue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,603 13,089
Accrued interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,109 3,457
Accrued tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,488 6,549
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,751 17,706

$381,964 $157,214

12. Income taxes

Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Current:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $178,569 $ 94,626 $ 75,817
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,564 17,623 15,151

Deferred:
Federal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (60,866) 23,508 17,966
State . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (10,502) 3,873 3,541

$140,765 $139,630 $112,475

The allocations of income tax expense were as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Continuing operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $123,675 $128,332 105,173
Discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,377 11,298 7,302
Gain on discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,713 — —

$140,765 $139,630 $112,475
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences, were as follows:

December 31,

2005 2004

Receivables, primarily allowance for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 28,805 $ 15,614
Asset impairment losses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,589
Alliance and Product Supply Agreement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,480
Accrued liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 121,404 62,478
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20,287 11,389

Deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 231,976 120,070
Valuation allowance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (9,898) (35,380)

Net deferred tax assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 222,078 84,690

Intangible assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (118,240) (100,044)
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (16,930) (52,116)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (17,583) (2,796)

Deferred tax liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (152,753) (154,956)

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 69,325 $ (70,266)

At December 31, 2005, the Company had state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $125,000
that expire through 2025, and federal net operating loss carryforwards of $11,000 that expire through 2025. The
utilization of these losses may be limited in future years based on the profitability of certain separate-return
entities. In prior years, the Company recognized capital losses for impairments and sales of certain of its assets of
which realization of a tax benefit was not certain. As a result of the taxable gain associated with the sale of
discontinued operations, see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the valuation allowance associated
with these losses was decreased by $26,500. The remaining valuation allowance change of $1,018 related to
changes in the estimated tax benefit of federal and state operating losses of separate-return entities, of which a
reduction of $2,018 is included as a component of tax expense. Purchase accounting adjustments increased the
valuation allowance by $3,036, and any future changes to this amount will result in an adjustment to goodwill.

The reconciliation between our effective tax rate from continuing operations and the U.S. federal income tax
rate is as follows:

Year ended
December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Federal income tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State taxes, net of federal benefit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3.4 3.8 4.3
Changes in deferred tax valuation allowances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.7) (0.3) (0.4)
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (0.3) 0.1 0.1

Effective tax rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37.4% 38.6% 39.0%
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13. Long-term debt

Long-term debt was comprised of the following:

December 31,

2005 2004

Senior secured credit facility:
Term Loan A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 341,250 $ 84,507
Term Loan B . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,443,875 1,024,668
Term Loan C . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 249,375

Senior and senior subordinated notes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,350,000
Acquisition obligations and other notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14,757 8,863
Capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,320 8,419

4,157,202 1,375,832
Less current portion . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (71,767) (53,364)

$4,085,435 $1,322,468

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2005 were as follows:

2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 71,767
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 67,886
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 78,755
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 87,130
2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 112,560
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,739,104

On October 5, 2005, the Company entered into a new credit agreement allowing for borrowings of up to
$3,050,000. The facilities under the credit agreement consist of a $250,000 six-year revolving credit facility, a
$350,000 six-year term loan A facility and a $2,450,000 seven-year term loan B facility (the Facilities). Existing
borrowings under the Facilities bear interest at LIBOR plus margins initially ranging from 2.00% to 2.25%. The
margins are subject to adjustment depending upon the Company’s achievement of certain financial ratios and can
range from 1.50% to 2.25% for the revolving credit facility and term loan A, and 2.00% to 2.25% for the term loan
B. The Facilities are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
and are secured by substantially all of the Company’s and its subsidiary guarantors’ assets. The credit agreement
also contains customary affirmative and negative covenants and requires compliance with financial covenants,
including a leverage ratio and an interest coverage ratio that determine the interest rate margins described above.
The aggregate amount of the Facilities may be increased by up to $500,000 as long as no default exists or would
result from such increase and the Company remains in compliance with the financial covenants after such increase.
Such additional loans would be on substantially the same terms as the original borrowings under the Facilities.

On October 5, 2005, the Company borrowed $2,850,000 under the Facilities ($50,000 on the revolving credit
facility, $350,000 on the term loan A and $2,450,000 on the term loan B), and used these borrowings, along with
available cash of $252,000 to purchase DVA Renal Healthcare and pay related bank fees and expenses of
approximately $47,000, and to pay fees and expenses in connection with terminating the Company’s then-existing
credit facility. On October 7, 2005, the Company repaid the $50,000 of the revolving credit facility with proceeds
from the sale of the divested centers, as discussed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Term Loan A

The Term Loan A bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 2.00%, for an overall effective rate of 6.57% at
December 31, 2005. The interest rate margin is subject to adjustment depending upon certain financial conditions
and could range from 1.50% to 2.25%. The Term Loan A matures in October 2011 and requires annual principal
payments of $35,000 in 2006, $39,375 in 2007, $52,500 in 2008, $61,250 in 2009, $87,500 in 2010 and $65,625
in 2011.
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Term Loan B

The Term Loan B bears interest at LIBOR plus a margin of 2.25%, for an overall effective rate of 6.73% at
December 31, 2005. The interest rate margin is subject to adjustment depending upon certain financial conditions
and could decrease by 0.25%. The Term Loan B matures in October 2012 and requires annual principal payments
of $24,500 in years 2006 through 2010, $594,125 in year 2011 and $1,727,250 in year 2012.

Revolving Line of Credit

The Company has undrawn revolving credit facilities totaling $250,000 of which approximately $50,000
was committed for outstanding letters of credit.

Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes

On March 22, 2005, the Company issued $500,000 of 65⁄8% senior notes due 2013 and $850,000 of 71⁄4%
senior subordinated notes due 2015 and incurred related deferred financing costs of $28,600. The notes are
guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries and require semi-
annual interest payments. The Company may redeem some or all of the senior notes at any time on or after
March 15, 2009 and some or all of the senior subordinated notes at any time on or after March 15, 2010. The
Company used the net proceeds of $1,323,000 along with available cash of $46,000 to repay all outstanding
amounts under the term loan portions of the Company’s then-existing credit facilities, including accrued interest.

Interest rate swaps

As of December 31, 2005, the Company maintained a total of nine interest rate swap agreements with
amortizing notional amounts totaling $1,580,000. These agreements had the economic effect of modifying the
LIBOR-based variable interest rate to fixed rates ranging from 3.08% to 4.2675%, resulting in an overall
weighted average effective interest rate of 6.1%, which included the Term Loan B margin of 2.25%. The swap
agreements expire in 2008 through 2010 and require quarterly interest payments. During 2005, the Company
incurred net cash obligations of approximately $1,746 from these swaps, $285 of which is included in debt
expense and $1,461 of which is included in swap valuation gains. As of December 31, 2005, the total fair value
of these swaps was an asset of $30,756. Also during 2005, the Company recorded $16,821, net of tax, of
additional comprehensive income for the changes in fair value of the effective portions of these swaps, or
$27,485 before tax.

In conjunction with the repayment and extinguishment of the Company’s prior credit facilities during 2005,
the Company wrote off deferred financing costs of $8,170 and reclassified into net income $8,100 of swap
valuation gains that were previously recorded in other comprehensive income. These gains represented the
accumulated fair value of several interest rate swap instruments that became ineffective as cash flow hedges as a
result of the repayment of the prior credit facilities. In addition, the Company recorded a net loss of $2,100
related to changes in fair values of these swaps that were not effective as interest rate hedges until they were
redesignated in the second quarter of 2005.

Portions of the Company’s various interest rate swap agreements that were previously designated and
expected to be effective as forward cash flow hedges became ineffective as a result of the Company not having
any variable rate LIBOR-based interest payments during a portion of 2005. This resulted in a net charge of
$1,700 to swap valuation gains, which includes the $1,461 discussed above as well as a reclassification into
income of $2,000 of swap valuation losses that were previously recorded in other comprehensive income. The
swap payment periods that began after October 2005 were highly effective as cash flow hedges with gains or
losses from changes in their fair values reported in other comprehensive income.
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As of December 31, 2005, the Company had approximately 55% of its variable rate debt and approximately
70% of its total debt economically fixed.

As a result of the swap agreements, the Company’s overall credit facility effective weighted average interest
rate was 6.62%, based upon the current margins in effect ranging from 2.00% to 2.25%, as of December 31,
2005.

At December 31, 2005, the Company’s overall average effective interest rate was 6.74%.

Debt expense

Debt expense consisted of interest expense of $134,429, $50,323 and $63,698 and amortization of $5,157,
$2,088 and $3,123 for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These interest expense amounts exclude capitalized
interest.

2004 transactions

In the third quarter of 2004, the Company amended its then-existing credit facilities in order to modify certain
restricted payment covenants principally for acquisition and share repurchases and the Company also extended the
maturity of the then existing Term Loan B until June 30, 2010. The Company also borrowed an additional $250,000
under a new Term Loan C principally to fund potential acquisitions and share repurchases. The Term Loan C
interest rate was LIBOR plus 1.75% for an overall effective rate of 4.16% at December 31, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company maintained three interest rate swap agreements with amortizing
notional amounts totaling $345,000. These agreements had the economic effect of modifying the LIBOR-based
variable interest rate to fixed rates ranging from 3.08% to 3.64%, resulting in an overall weighted average effective
interest rate of 5.27%, which includes the Term Loan B margin of 2.00% and the Term Loan C margin of 1.75%.
The swap agreements expire in 2008 and 2009 and require quarterly interest payments. During 2004, the Company
incurred net cash obligations of $5,256 from these swaps which is included in debt expense. As of December 31,
2004, the fair value of these swaps was an asset of $2,400 resulting in additional comprehensive income during the
year of $2,404, or $3,945 before tax.

The Company also maintained two forward amortizing notional interest rate swap agreements totaling
$800,000 at December 31, 2004. These swaps went effective on July 1, 2005 and had the economic effect of
modifying the LIBOR-based variable interest rate to a fixed rate of 3.875%. The swaps expire in January 2010 and
require quarterly interest payments that began in October 2005. As of December 31, 2004, the total fair value of
these swaps was an asset of $400 resulting in additional comprehensive income during the year of $250, net of tax.

14. Leases

The majority of the Company’s facilities are leased under non-cancelable operating leases, ranging in terms
from five to ten years and contain renewal options of five to ten years at the fair rental value at the time of
renewal or at rates subject to periodic consumer price index increases. The Company has certain equipment
leased under capital leases.
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Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases and capital leases are as follows:

Operating
leases

Capital
leases

2006 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $136,684 1,717
2007 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 124,861 3,201
2008 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 111,673 980
2009 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 96,477 741
2010 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 81,737 671
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 266,796 2,454

$818,228 9,764

Less portion representing interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (2,444)

Total capital lease obligations, including current portion . . . . . . . . . . $ 7,320

Rent expense under all operating leases for 2005, 2004, and 2003 was $109,511, $78,456 and $67,660,
respectively. Leasehold improvement incentives are deferred and amortized to rent expense over the term of the
lease. The net book value of property and equipment under capital leases was $6,094, $7,711 and $7,811 at
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Capital lease obligations are included in long-term debt. See
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

15. Shareholders’ equity

In the second quarter of 2004, the Board of Directors approved a three-for-two stock split of the Company’s
common stock in the form of a stock dividend payable on June 15, 2004 to stockholders of record on June 1,
2004. All stockholders entitled to fractional shares received a proportional cash payment. The Company’s stock
began trading on a post-split basis on June 16, 2004. All share and per-share data for all periods presented have
been adjusted to retroactively reflect the effects of the stock split.

The total outstanding Board authorizations for share repurchases as of December 31, 2005 were
approximately $249,000. There were no share repurchases during 2005. Under the previously announced Board
authorization for share repurchases, we repurchased a total of 3,350,100 shares of common stock for $96,540, or
an average price of $28.82 per share during 2004. On November 2, 2004, our Board of Directors authorized us to
repurchase up to an additional $200,000 of our common stock, from time to time, in the open market or in
privately negotiated transactions. During 2003, the Company repurchased a total of 5,162,850 shares of common
stock for $107,162 or an average of $20.76 per share, pursuant to announced Board authorizations.

Stock-based compensation plans

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans are described below.

2002 Plan. On April 11, 2002, the Company’s shareholders approved the DaVita Inc. 2002 Equity
Compensation Plan. This plan provides for grants of stock awards to employees, directors and other individuals
providing services to the Company, except that incentive stock options may only be awarded to employees. The
plan requires that stock option grants be issued with exercise prices not less than the market price of the stock on
the date of grant and with a maximum award term of five years. Stock options granted under this plan are
generally non-qualified awards that vest over four years from the date of grant. Shares available under the 2002
Plan are replenished by shares repurchased by the Company from the cash proceeds and related tax benefits from
award exercises under the 2002 and predecessor plans.
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On May 21, 2003, the shareholders approved an amendment to reduce shares authorized to the 2002 Plan by
2,491,500 and to authorize plan awards in the form of restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock issuances
(“full share awards”), stock appreciation rights and other equity-based awards. Full share awards reduce total
shares available under the plan at a rate of 2.75:1. At December 31, 2005, there were 5,821,843 awards
outstanding and 11,420,533 shares available for future grants under the 2002 Plan, including 3,104,517 shares
under the 2002 Plan replenishment provision.

1999 Plan. The 1999 Non-Executive Officer and Non-Director Equity Compensation Plan provides for
grants of stock options to employees and other individuals providing services, other than executive officers and
members of the Board of Directors. There are 9,000,000 common shares reserved for issuance under this plan,
and options granted under this plan generally vest over four years from the date of grant. Grants are generally
issued with exercise prices equal to the market price of the stock on the date of grant and maximum terms of five
years. At December 31, 2005 there were 2,095,502 options outstanding and 214,589 shares available for future
grants under this plan.

Predecessor plans. Upon shareholder approval of the 2002 Plan, the following predecessor plans were
terminated, except with respect to options then outstanding: the 1994 Equity Compensation Plan, the 1995 Equity
Compensation Plan, the 1997 Equity Compensation Plan, and the 1999 Equity Compensation Plan. Shares
available for future grants under these predecessor plans were transferred to the 2002 Plan upon its approval, and
cancelled predecessor plan options become available for new awards under the 2002 Plan. Options granted under
these plans were generally issued with exercise prices equal to the market price of the stock on the date of grant,
vested over four years from the date of grant, and bore maximum terms of five to 10 years. The RTC plan, a
special purpose option plan related to the merger between the Company and Renal Treatment Centers, Inc., was
terminated in 1999. At December 31, 2005 there were 1,671,114 stock options outstanding under these
terminated plans.

A combined summary of the status of these stock-based compensation plans is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Awards

Weighted
average
exercise

price Awards

Weighted
average
exercise

price Awards

Weighted
average
exercise

price

Outstanding at beginning of year . . . . . . 10,732,135 $16.38 13,778,004 $10.97 14,837,962 $ 9.08
Granted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,850,941 45.63 2,794,416 28.10 3,013,876 13.53
Exercised . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,288,988) 12.81 (4,950,399) 8.62 (3,490,812) 5.31
Cancelled . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (705,629) 22.68 (889,886) 12.51 (583,022) 9.94

Outstanding at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . 9,588,459 $25.84 10,732,135 $16.38 13,778,004 $10.97

Awards exercisable at year end . . . . . . . 3,103,887 3,914,200 5,159,031

Weighted-average fair value of awards
granted during the year . . . . . . . . . . . $12.94 $10.53 $ 5.01

Awards granted in 2005, 2004 and 2003 include 53,691, 165,766 and 130,127 full share awards,
respectively.
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The following table summarizes information about stock plan awards outstanding at December 31, 2005:

Range of exercise prices
Awards

Outstanding

Weighted
average

remaining
contractual

life

Weighted
average
exercise

price
Awards

exercisable

Weighted
average
exercise

price

$ 0.00–$ 5.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 982,087 3.7 $ 2.68 671,364 $ 3.93
$ 5.01–$10.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 177,625 3.2 6.03 177,625 6.03
$10.01–$15.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,030,380 2.0 13.41 1,079,566 13.13
$15.01–$20.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,415,018 1.3 15.68 591,509 15.61
$20.01–$25.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33,050 2.5 21.11 21,050 21.44
$25.01–$30.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 854,425 3.6 28.13 199,708 28.10
$30.01–$35.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,314,124 3.3 30.56 347,315 30.38
$35.01–$40.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 101,000 4.0 39.07 15,750 38.81
$40.01–$45.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 252,000 4.3 41.92
$45.01–$50.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,816,500 4.7 46.28
$50.01–$55.00 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 612,250 5.0 50.88

9,588,459 3.2 $25.84 3,103,887 $14.29

Deferred stock unit arrangements. The Company made awards of 83,884 restricted stock units to members
of the Board of Directors and certain key executive officers in 2003 at total grant-date fair values of $1,152.
These awards vest over one to four years and are settled in stock as they vest or at a later date at the election of
the recipient. Share issuances under deferred stock unit arrangements were 14,463, 156,384 and 49,107 during
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and awards of 156,278 shares remained outstanding as of December 31, 2005.

Compensation expense associated with the above stock-based compensation plans and arrangements of
$3,408, $1,885 and $1,695 was recognized in 2005, 2004, and 2003 respectively.

Employee stock purchase plan. The Employee Stock Purchase Plan entitles qualifying employees to
purchase up to $25 of the Company’s common stock during each calendar year. The amounts used to purchase
stock are accumulated through payroll withholdings or through optional lump sum payments made in advance of
the first day of the purchase right period. The plan allows employees to purchase stock for the lesser of 100% of
the fair market value on the first day of the purchase right period or 85% of the fair market value on the last day
of the purchase right period. Purchase right periods begin on January 1 or July 1, and end on December 31.
Payroll withholdings and lump-sum payments related to the plan, included in accrued compensation and benefits,
were $3,153, $1,795 and $968 at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003. Subsequent to December 31, 2005, 2004,
and 2003, 77,722, 64,169 and 56,079 shares, respectively, were issued to satisfy obligations under the plan.

The fair value of the employees’ purchase rights was estimated as of the beginning dates of the purchase
right periods using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions for grants on July 1, 2005,
January 1, 2005, July 1, 2004, January 1, 2004, July 1, 2003, and January 1, 2003, respectively: dividend yield of
0.0% for all periods; average expected volatility of 27% for 2005, 38% for 2004, and 40% for 2003; and average
risk-free interest rates of 3.2% for 2005, 2.7% for 2004, and 1.1% for 2003. Using these assumptions, the
weighted-average fair value of purchase rights granted were $9.64, $11.04, $7.97, $8.01, $4.79 and $5.13,
respectively.

Shareholder rights plan. The Company’s Board of Directors approved a shareholder rights plan on
November 14, 2002. This plan is designed to assure that DaVita’s shareholders receive fair treatment in the event
of any proposed takeover of DaVita.
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Pursuant to this plan, the Board approved the declaration of a dividend distribution of one common stock
purchase right for each outstanding share of its common stock payable on December 10, 2002 to holders of
record of DaVita common stock on November 29, 2002. This rights distribution was not taxable to DaVita
shareholders. As a result of the stock split that occurred during the second quarter of 2004, two-thirds of a right
are now attached to each share of the Company’s common stock. Two-thirds of a right will also attach to each
newly issued or reissued share of common stock. These rights will become exercisable if a person or group
acquires, or announces a tender offer for, 15% or more of DaVita’s outstanding common stock. The triggering
person’s stock purchase rights will become void at that time and will not become exercisable.

Each right initially entitles its holder to purchase one share of common stock from the Company at a price
of $125.00. If the rights become exercisable, and subject to adjustment for authorized shares available, each
purchase right will then entitle its holder to purchase $125.00 of common stock at a price per share equal to 50%
of the average daily closing price of the Company’s common stock for the immediately preceding 30 consecutive
trading days. If DaVita is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction after the rights become
exercisable, provisions will be made to allow the holder of each right to purchase $125.00 of common stock from
the acquiring company at a price equal to 50% of the average daily closing price of that company’s common
stock for the immediately preceding 30 consecutive trading days.

The Board of Directors may elect to redeem the rights at $0.01 per purchase right at any time prior to, or
exchange common stock for the rights at an exchange ratio of one share per right at any time after, a person or
group acquires or announces a tender offer for 15% or more of DaVita’s outstanding common stock. The
exercise price, number of shares, redemption price or exchange ratio associated with each right may be adjusted
as appropriate upon the occurrence of certain events, including any stock split, stock dividend or similar
transaction. These purchase rights will expire no later than November 14, 2012.

16. Employee benefit plans

The Company has a savings plan for substantially all employees, which has been established pursuant to the
provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, or IRC. The plan provides for employees to
contribute a percentage of their base annual salaries on a tax-deferred basis not to exceed IRC limitations. The
Company does not provide any matching contributions.

During 2000, the Company established the DaVita Inc. Profit Sharing Plan. Contributions to this defined
contribution benefit plan are made at the discretion of the Company as determined and approved by the Board of
Directors. All contributions are deposited into an irrevocable trust. The profit sharing award for each eligible
participant is based upon the achievement of employee-specific and/or corporate financial and operating goals.
During 2003, the Company recognized plan contribution expense of $11,900. During 2004 the Company elected
to discontinue funding the profit sharing trust and to distribute similar awards directly to the recipients, or at their
discretion to their 401(k) accounts.

On October 5, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the adoption of the DaVita Voluntary
Deferral Plan. This plan is non-qualified and permits certain employees designated by the plan administrator
whose annualized base salary equals or exceeds a minimum annual threshold amount as set by the Company to
elect to defer all or a portion of their annual bonus payment and, as originally adopted, up to 15% of their base
salary into a deferral account maintained by the Company. Effective January 1, 2006, the deferral percentage for
base salary was increased to up to 50% of a participant’s base salary. Deferred amounts are generally paid out in
cash at the participant’s election either in the first or second year following retirement or in a specified future
period at least three to four years after the deferral election was effective.
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17. Contingencies

Health care provider revenues may be subject to adjustment as a result of (1) examination by government
agencies or contractors, for which the resolution of any matters raised may take extended periods of time to
finalize; (2) differing interpretations of government regulations by different fiscal intermediaries or regulatory
authorities; (3) differing opinions regarding a patient’s medical diagnosis or the medical necessity of services
provided; (4) retroactive applications or interpretations of governmental requirements; and (5) potential claims
for refunds from private payors, including as a result of government action.

United States Attorney’s inquiries

On March 4, 2005, the Company received a subpoena from the United States Attorney’s Office, or U.S.
Attorney’s Office, for the Eastern District of Missouri in St. Louis. The subpoena requires production of a wide
range of documents relating to the Company’s operations, including documents related to, among other things,
pharmaceutical and other services provided to patients, relationships with pharmaceutical companies, financial
relationships with physicians and joint ventures. The subpoena covers the period from December 1, 1996 through
the present. The subject matter of this subpoena significantly overlaps with the subject matter of the investigation
being conducted by the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania. The Company
has met with representatives of the government to discuss the scope of the subpoena and is in the process of
producing responsive documents. In October 2005, the Company received a request for additional documents
related to specific medical director and joint venture arrangements. In February 2006, we received an additional
subpoena for documents, including certain patient records, relating to the administration and billing of EPO. The
Company intends to continue to cooperate with the government’s investigation. The subpoenas have been issued
in connection with a joint civil and criminal investigation. To the Company’s knowledge, no proceedings have
been initiated against it at this time, although the Company cannot predict whether or when proceedings might be
initiated or when these matters may be resolved. Compliance with the subpoenas will continue to require
management attention and legal expense. In addition, criminal proceedings may be initiated against the Company
in connection with this inquiry. Any negative findings could result in substantial financial penalties against the
Company, exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs and criminal penalties.

On October 25, 2004, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern
District of New York in Brooklyn. The subpoena covers the period from 1996 to present and requires the
production of a wide range of documents relating to the Company’s operations, including DaVita Laboratory
Services. The subpoena also includes specific requests for documents relating to testing for parathyroid hormone
levels (PTH), and to products relating to vitamin D therapies. The Company believes that the subpoena has been
issued in connection with a joint civil and criminal investigation. Other participants in the dialysis industry
received a similar subpoena, including Fresenius Medical Group, Renal Care Group and the Company’s recently
acquired subsidiary, DVA Renal Healthcare. To the Company’s knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated
against the Company or DVA Renal Healthcare at this time, although the Company cannot predict whether or
when proceedings might be initiated or when these matters may be resolved. Compliance with the subpoenas will
continue to require management attention and legal expense. In addition, criminal proceedings may be initiated
against the Company or DVA Renal Healthcare in connection with this inquiry. Any negative findings could
result in substantial financial penalties against the Company and DVA Renal Healthcare, exclusion from future
participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs and criminal penalties.

In February 2001, the Civil Division of the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania
in Philadelphia contacted the Company and requested its cooperation in a review of some of its historical
practices, including billing and other operating procedures and the Company’s financial relationships with
physicians. The Company cooperated in this review and provided the requested records to the U.S. Attorney’s
Office. In May 2002, the Company received a subpoena from the U.S. Attorney’s Office and the Philadelphia
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Office of the Office of Inspector General of the Department of Health and Human Services (OIG). The subpoena
requires an update to the information the Company provided in its response to the February 2001 request, and
also seeks a wide range documents relating to pharmaceutical and other ancillary services provided to patients,
including laboratory and other diagnostic testing services, as well as documents relating to the Company’s
financial relationships with physicians and pharmaceutical companies. The subpoena covers the period from May
1996 to May 2002. The Company has provided the documents requested and continues to cooperate with the
United States Attorney’s Office and the OIG in its investigation. If this review proceeds, the government could
expand its areas of concern. To the Company’s knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated against the
Company at this time, although the Company cannot predict whether or when proceedings might be initiated or
when these matters may be resolved. Any negative findings could result in substantial financial penalties against
the Company and exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs.

The Company has received several informal inquiries from representatives of the New York Attorney
General’s Medicaid Fraud Control Unit (MFCU) regarding certain aspects of the EPO practices taking place at
facilities managed by the Company in New York. The Company is cooperating with the MFCU’s informal
inquiries and has provided documents and information to the MFCU. To the best of the Company’s knowledge,
no proceedings have been initiated against the Company and the MFCU has not indicated an intention to do so,
although the Company cannot predict whether it will receive further inquiries or whether or when proceedings
might be initiated.

In June 2004, DVA Renal Healthcare was served with a complaint filed in the Superior Court of California
by one of its former employees that worked for its California acute services program. The complaint, which is
styled as a class action, alleges, among other things, that DVA Renal Healthcare failed to provide overtime
wages, defined rest periods and meal periods, or compensation in lieu of such provisions and failed to comply
with certain other California labor code requirements. The Company is evaluating the claims and intends to
vigorously defend itself in the matter. It also intends to vigorously oppose the certification of this matter as a
class action. At this time, the Company cannot estimate the range of damages, if any.

On August 8, 2005, Blue Cross/Blue Shield of Louisiana filed a complaint in the United States District
Court for the Western District of Louisiana against Gambro AB, DVA Renal Healthcare and related entities. The
plaintiff seeks to bring its claims as a class action on behalf of itself and all entities that paid any of the
defendants for health care goods and services from on or about January 1991 through at least December 2004.
The complaint alleges, among other things, damages resulting from facts and circumstances underlying DVA
Renal Healthcare’s December 2004 settlement agreement with the Department of Justice and certain agencies of
the United States Government. The Company is investigating these claims and intends to vigorously defend itself
in the matter. It also intends to vigorously oppose the certification of this matter as a class action. At this time,
the Company cannot estimate the range of damages, if any.

Other

In addition to the foregoing, the Company is subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business,
including from time to time, contractual disputes and professional and general liability claims. The Company
may also be subject to additional claims by commercial payors and other third parties relating to billing practices
and, other matters covered by the DVA Renal Healthcare settlement agreement with the Department of Justice.
The Company believes that the ultimate resolution of any such pending proceedings, whether the underlying
claims are covered by insurance or not, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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18. Concentrations

Approximately 65% of the Company’s total dialysis revenues in 2005, and 60% in 2004, and 2003 are from
government-based programs, principally Medicare and Medicaid. Accounts receivable from Medicare and
Medicaid were approximately $250,000 as of December 31, 2005. No other single payor accounted for more than
5% of total accounts receivable.

A significant physician-prescribed pharmaceutical administered during dialysis, EPO, is provided by a sole
supplier and accounted for approximately one fourth of net operating revenues. Although the Company currently
receives discounted prices for EPO, the supplier has unilateral pricing discretion and in the future the Company
may not be able to achieve the same cost levels historically obtained.

19. Other commitments

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the third-party
owners’ discretion. If these put provisions are exercised, the Company would be required to purchase the third-
party owners’ interests at either the appraised fair market value or a predetermined multiple of cash flow or
earnings, which approximates fair value. As of December 31, 2005, the Company’s potential obligations under
these put provisions totaled approximately $179,000 of which approximately $105,000 was exercisable within
one year. Additionally, the Company has certain other potential commitments to provide operating capital to
several minority-owned centers and to third-party centers that the Company operates under administrative service
agreements of approximately $15,000.

The Company is obligated under mandatorily redeemable instruments in connection with certain
consolidated joint ventures. Future distributions may be required for the minority partner’s interests in limited-
life entities which dissolve after terms of ten to fifty years. As of December 31, 2005, such distributions would be
valued below the related minority interests balances in the consolidated balance sheet.

Other than operating leases, disclosed in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and the letters of
credit and the interest rate swap agreements, disclosed in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
Company has no off balance sheet financing arrangements as of December 31, 2005.

20. Florida laboratory

During 2005, 2004, and 2003, the Company recognized a total of $3,771, $8,293, and $24,000 respectively,
in prior years’ Medicare lab recoveries that were previously in dispute related to lab services that were performed
in 2001 and 2002. As of December 31, 2005, there are no significant unresolved Medicare lab billing issues. In
total the Company has recognized $94,842 in Medicare lab recoveries over the past four years related to prior
years’ billings previously in dispute.

21. Fair values of financial instruments

Financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable, accounts payable,
accrued compensation and benefits, other accrued liabilities, interest rate swap agreements and debt. The
balances of the non-debt financial instruments as presented in the financial statements at December 31, 2005
approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of their settlements. Borrowings under the Company’s
credit facility, of which $2,785,125 was outstanding as of December 31, 2005, reflect fair value as they are
subject to fees and adjustable rates competitively determined in the marketplace. The fair value of the
Company’s senior subordinated notes were approximately $1,369,400 at December 31, 2005 based upon quoted
market prices. The fair value of the interest rate swaps were an asset of approximately $30,800 as of
December 31, 2005, which is recorded in the financial statements.
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22. Supplemental cash flow information

The table below provides supplemental cash flow information:

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Cash paid:
Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 82,275 $95,943 $ 53,074
Interest . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 86,035 48,822 73,278

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Fixed assets acquired under capital lease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,295 2,283
Contributions to consolidated partnerships . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,326 9,167 2,645
Deferred financing cost write-offs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,170 26,501
Conversion of debt to equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 125,254
Liabilities assumed in conjunction with common stock acquisitions . . . . . 300,462 13,991 357

23. Selected quarterly financial data (unaudited)

2005 2004

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31 December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31

Net operating revenues . . . . . . $1,133,315 $644,892 $617,085 $578,626 $583,932 $564,929 $522,334 $506,135

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . 158,782 105,298 102,431 98,860 98,090 104,267 89,133 89,636

Income from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 56,411 50,914 48,127 51,970 52,267 55,866 47,912 48,463

Discontinued operations, net
of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,738 4,303 4,816 4,364 4,335 4,520 4,489 4,402

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 64,149 55,217 52,943 56,334 56,602 60,386 52,401 52,865

Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations . . . . . 0.55 0.50 0.48 0.52 0.53 0.56 0.48 0.49

Basic earnings per share . . . . . 0.63 0.55 0.53 0.57 0.58 0.61 0.53 0.54

Diluted earnings per share
from continuing
operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.54 0.49 0.46 0.50 0.51 0.54 0.46 0.47

Diluted earnings per share . . . $ 0.61 $ 0.53 $ 0.51 $ 0.55 $ 0.56 $ 0.59 $ 0.50 $ 0.51
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24. Condensed consolidating financial statements

The following information is presented in accordance with Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X. The operating and
investing activities of the separate legal entities included in the consolidated financial statements are fully
interdependent and integrated. Revenues and operating expenses of the separate legal entities include
intercompany charges for management and other services. The senior notes and the senior subordinated notes
were issued by the Company and are guaranteed by substantially all of the Company’s direct and indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries. Each of the guarantor subsidiaries has guaranteed the notes on a joint and several, full and
unconditional basis. Non-wholly-owned subsidiaries, joint ventures, partnerships and third parties are not
guarantors of these obligations.

Condensed Consolidating Statements of Income

DaVita Inc.
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Total

For the year ended December 31, 2005
Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $224,501 $2,541,928 $451,141 $(243,652) $2,973,918
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 122,021 2,263,234 344,855 (243,652) 2,486,458
Minority interests and equity income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22,089 22,089

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 102,480 278,694 106,286 (22,089) 465,371
Debt expense, refinancing charges and swap gains, net . . . . 32,851 108,144 2,213 143,208
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,934 8,934
Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29,461 93,537 677 123,675
Discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15,179 6,042 21,221
Equity earnings in subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179,541 87,349 (266,890) —

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $228,643 $ 179,541 $109,438 $(288,979) $ 228,643

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $177,370 $1,913,372 $279,578 $(192,990) $2,177,330
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 109,256 1,645,549 222,140 (192,990) 1,783,955
Minority interests and equity income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12,249 12,249

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 68,114 267,823 57,438 (12,249) 381,126
Debt expense (income) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12,082) 62,633 1,860 52,411
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,125 4,125
Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32,776 94,935 621 128,332
Discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,106 6,640 17,746
Equity earnings in subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 170,709 49,348 (220,057) —

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $222,254 $ 170,709 $ 61,597 $(232,306) $ 222,254

For the year ended December 31, 2003
Net operating revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $163,401 $1,719,498 $213,684 $(177,305) $1,919,278
Operating expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 96,569 1,462,327 171,096 (177,305) 1,552,687
Minority interests and equity income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,660 6,660

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 66,832 257,171 42,588 (6,660) 359,931
Debt expense and refinancing charges, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40,943 46,817 5,562 93,322
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,042 3,042
Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,340 93,782 51 105,173
Discontinued operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,804 3,509 11,313
Equity earnings in subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 158,200 33,824 (192,024) —

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $175,791 $ 158,200 $ 40,484 $(198,684) $ 175,791
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheets

DaVita Inc.
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Total

As of December 31, 2005
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 431,811 $ 431,811
Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 750,549 $103,011 853,560
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5,877 350,035 13,125 369,037

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 437,688 1,100,584 116,136 1,654,408
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34,319 611,828 103,931 750,078
Amortizable intangible, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 73,407 158,980 3,557 235,944
Investments in subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,616,683 306,168 $(3,922,851) —
Receivables from subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 937,081 (937,081) —
Other long-term assets and investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,273 4,933 9,743 44,949
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,399,112 195,271 3,594,383

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5,129,451 $5,581,605 $428,638 $(4,859,932) $6,279,762

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 285,956 $ 691,272 $ 12,505 $ 989,733
Payables to parent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 919,728 17,353 $ (937,081) —
Long-term debt and other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . 3,992,886 353,922 3,973 4,350,781
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 88,639 88,639
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 850,609 3,616,683 394,807 (4,011,490) 850,609

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . $5,129,451 $5,581,605 $428,638 $(4,859,932) $6,279,762

As of December 31, 2004
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 251,979 $ 251,979
Accounts receivable, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 394,483 $ 58,812 453,295
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,996 152,378 7,072 163,446

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 255,975 546,861 65,884 868,720
Property and equipment, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29,928 312,521 69,615 412,064
Amortizable intangible assets, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,850 47,766 4,103 60,719
Investments in subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 995,535 226,950 $(1,222,485) —
Receivables from subsidiaries . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 652,367 (652,367) —
Other long-term assets and investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3,500 10,701 29 14,230
Goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 982,591 173,635 1,156,226

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $1,946,155 $2,127,390 $313,266 $(1,874,852) $2,511,959

Current liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 78,802 $ 356,333 $ 6,600 $ 441,735
Payables to parent . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 635,916 16,451 $ (652,367) —
Long-term debt and other long-term liabilities . . . . . . . 1,344,219 139,606 10,072 1,493,897
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,193 53,193
Shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 523,134 995,535 280,143 (1,275,678) 523,134

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . . . . . . . . $1,946,155 $2,127,390 $313,266 $(1,874,852) $2,511,959
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Cash Flows

DaVita Inc.
Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Non-Guarantor

Subsidiaries
Consolidating
Adjustments

Consolidated
Total

For the year ended December 31, 2005
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 228,643 $ 179,541 $ 109,438 $(288,979) $ 228,643
Changes in operating and intercompany assets and liabilities

and non cash items included in net income . . . . . . . . . . . . 104,043 14,409 (150,520) 288,979 256,911

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . . . . . . 332,686 193,950 (41,082) — 485,554

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (11,780) (101,978) (47,607) (161,365)
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (3,035,434) (166,970) (3,202,404)
Proceeds from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 151,587 147,262 298,849
Other items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (68,146) 87,703 19,557

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . . . . . . (2,895,627) (189,832) 40,096 (3,045,363)

Cash flows from financing activities
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,776,738 (4,118) 986 2,773,606
Other items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (33,965) (33,965)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . . . . . 2,742,773 (4,118) 986 2,739,641

Net increase in cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179,832 — — — 179,832
Cash at the beginning of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 251,979 251,979

Cash at the end of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 431,811 $ — $ — $ — $ 431,811

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 222,254 $ 170,709 $ 61,597 $(232,306) $ 222,254
Changes in operating and intercompany assets and liabilities

and non cash items included in net income . . . . . . . . . . . . (173,238) 203,653 (65,030) 232,306 197,691

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . . . . . . 49,016 374,362 (3,433) — 419,945

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (4,416) (92,478) (31,434) (128,328)
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (264,177) (2,088) (266,265)
Proceeds from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,223 1,223
Other items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (21,587) 35,296 13,709

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . . . . . . (4,416) (377,019) 1,774 (379,661)

Cash flows from financing activities
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 202,983 2,657 1,659 207,299
Other items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (57,261) (57,261)

Net cash provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 145,722 2,657 1,659 150,038

Net increase in cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 190,322 — — — 190,322
Cash at the beginning of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61,657 61,657

Cash at the end of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 251,979 $ — $ — $ — $ 251,979

For the year ended December 31, 2003
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 175,791 $ 158,200 $ 40,484 $(198,684) $ 175,791
Changes in operating and intercompany assets and liabilities

and non cash items included in net income . . . . . . . . . . . . (60,363) 57,013 (77,477) 198,684 117,857

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities . . . . . . . . 115,428 215,213 (36,993) — 293,648

Cash flows from investing activities
Additions of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (12,164) (44,274) (43,834) (100,272)
Acquisitions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (99,645) (99,645)
Proceeds from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,275 2,275
Other items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (77,337) 81,003 3,666

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . . . . . . . . (12,164) (218,981) 37,169 (193,976)

Cash flows from financing activities
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (35,310) 3,768 (176) (31,718)
Other items . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (102,772) (102,772)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities . . . . . . . . (138,082) 3,768 (176) (134,490)

Net decrease in cash . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (34,818) — — — (34,818)
Cash at the beginning of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 96,475 96,475

Cash at the end of the year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 61,657 $ — $ — $ — $ 61,657
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Risk Factors

This Annual Report contains statements that are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
federal securities laws. These statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties including the risks
discussed below. The risks discussed below are not the only ones facing our business. Please read the cautionary
notice regarding forward-looking statements under the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operation”.

If the average rates that commercial payors pay us decline, then our revenues, earnings and cash flows
would be substantially reduced.

Approximately 35% of our current dialysis revenues are generated from patients who have commercial
payors as the primary payor. The majority of these patients have insurance policies that pay us on terms and at
rates materially higher than Medicare rates. Based on our recent experience in negotiating with commercial
payors, we believe that commercial payors will continue to negotiate for lower payment rates as a result of
general conditions in the market, recent and future consolidations among commercial payors, our acquisition of
DVA Renal Healthcare, and other factors. In addition, DVA Renal Healthcare contracts with commercial payors,
which on average provide for lower rates than our historical commercial rates. The integration of DVA Renal
Healthcare’s operations may lead to increased volatility in payment rates from commercial payors as a result of
reconciling and integrating existing contracts with commercial payors. If the average rates that commercial
payors pay us decline significantly, it would have a material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash
flows.

If the number of patients with higher-paying commercial insurance declines, then our revenues, earnings
and cash flows would be substantially reduced.

Our revenue levels are sensitive to the percentage of our patients with higher-paying commercial insurance
coverage. A patient’s insurance coverage may change for a number of reasons, including as a result of changes in
the patient’s or a family member’s employment status. For a patient covered by an employer group health plan,
Medicare generally becomes the primary payor after 33 months, or earlier if the patient’s employer group health
plan coverage terminates. When Medicare becomes the primary payor, the payment rate we receive for that
patient shifts from the employer group health plan rate to the Medicare payment rate. If there is a significant
reduction in the number of patients under higher-paying commercial plans relative to government-based
programs that pay at lower rates it would have a material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash
flows.

Future declines, or the lack of further increases, in Medicare payment rates would reduce our revenues,
earnings and cash flows.

Approximately one-half of our current dialysis revenues are generated from patients who have Medicare as
their primary payor. The Medicare ESRD program pays us for dialysis and ancillary services at fixed rates.
Unlike most other services covered by Medicare, the Medicare ESRD program has not provided for regular
inflation increases in payment rates. Increases in operating costs that are subject to inflation, such as labor and
supply costs, have occurred and are expected to continue to occur regardless of whether there is a compensating
increase in payment rates. We cannot predict with certainty the nature or extent of future rate changes, if any. To
the extent these rates decline or are not adjusted to keep pace with inflation, our revenues, earnings and cash
flows would be adversely affected.

Changes in the structure of, and payment rates under, the Medicare ESRD program could substantially
reduce our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

The Medicare composite rate is the payment rate for a dialysis treatment, including the supplies used in
those treatments, specified laboratory tests and certain pharmaceuticals. Other services and pharmaceuticals,
including EPO (a pharmaceutical used to treat anemia, a common complication associated with ESRD), vitamin
D analogs and iron supplements, are separately billed. Changes to the structure of the composite rate and
separately billable payment rates became effective January 1, 2006 as Medicare moved payment rates for
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Risk Factors (continued)

pharmaceuticals from average acquisition cost to average sale price plus 6%. Future changes in the structure of,
and payment rates under, the Medicare ESRD program could substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and
cash flows.

CMS continues to study the ESRD payment system through a number of demonstration projects which will
take place over the next few years. Pharmaceuticals are approximately 35% of our current total Medicare
revenues. If Medicare begins to include in its composite payment rate the pharmaceuticals, laboratory services or
other ancillary services that it currently pays separately, or if there are further changes to or decreases in the
payment rate for these items without a corresponding increase in the composite rate, it would have a material
adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

Changes in state Medicaid programs or payment rates could reduce our revenues, earnings and cash
flows.

Approximately 5% of our current dialysis revenues are generated from patients who have Medicaid as their
primary coverage. When state governments face increasing budgetary pressure, they may propose reductions in
payment rates, limitations on eligibility or other changes to Medicaid programs. If state governments reduce the
rates paid by those programs for dialysis and related services, limit eligibility for Medicaid coverage or adopt
changes similar to those adopted by Medicare, then our revenues, earnings and cash flows could be adversely
affected.

Changes in clinical practices and payment rates or rules for EPO and other pharmaceuticals could
substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

The administration of EPO and other pharmaceuticals accounts for approximately 35% of our current total
dialysis revenues. Changes in physician practice patterns and accepted clinical practices, changes in private and
governmental payment criteria, the introduction of new pharmaceuticals and the conversion to alternate types of
administration could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

For example, CMS has issued a new payment coverage policy for EPO which will be effective April 1,
2006. This new policy restricts payments based on EPO doses for certain patients and may affect physician
prescription patterns as they adopt the new policy, which could have a negative impact on our revenues, earnings
and cash flows. Additionally, there is a risk that certain of our fiscal intermediaries may choose to interpret the
guideline in a manner that further limits payments and thus negatively impacts our revenues, earnings and cash
flows.

Adverse developments with respect to EPO and the use and marketing of Aranesp® could materially
reduce our earnings and cash flows and affect our ability to care for our patients.

Amgen Inc. is the sole supplier of EPO and may unilaterally decide to increase its price for EPO, subject to
certain contractual limitations. Although our agreement with Amgen for EPO pricing continues for a fixed time
period and includes potential pricing discounts depending upon the achievement of certain clinical and other
criteria, we cannot predict whether we will continue to receive the discount structure for EPO that we currently
receive, or whether we will continue to achieve the same levels of discounts within that structure as we have
historically achieved. In addition, our contract with Amgen provides for specific rebates and incentives that are
based on patient outcomes, process improvement, data submission, purchase volume growth and some
combination of these factors. Failure to meet or exceed the targets and earn the specified rebates and incentives
could have a material adverse effect on our earnings and cash flows. An increase in the cost of EPO could have a
material adverse effect on our earnings and cash flows.

Amgen has developed and obtained FDA approval for Aranesp®, a pharmaceutical used to treat anemia that
may replace EPO or reduce its use with dialysis patients. Unlike EPO, which is generally administered in
conjunction with each dialysis treatment, Aranesp® can remain effective for between two and three weeks. In the
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event that Amgen begins to market Aranesp® for the treatment of dialysis patients, we may realize lower margins
on the administration of Aranesp® than are currently realized with EPO. In addition, some physicians may begin
to administer Aranesp® in their offices, which would prevent us from recognizing revenue or profit from the
administration of EPO or Aranesp® to those physicians’ patients. A significant increase in the use of Aranesp®

could have a material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

The investigation related to the subpoena we received on March 4, 2005 from the U.S. Attorney’s Office
for the Eastern District of Missouri could result in substantial penalties against us.

We are voluntarily cooperating with the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Missouri with
respect to the subpoena we received on March 4, 2005, which requested a wide range of documents relating to
our operations, including documents related to, among other things, pharmaceutical and other services provided
to patients, relationships with pharmaceutical companies, financial relationships with physicians and joint
ventures and the related requests for additional documents related to specific medical director and joint venture
arrangements and certain patient records relating to the administration and billing of EPO we received in October
2005 and February 2006. To our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated against us at this time, although
we cannot predict whether or when proceedings might be initiated or when these matters may be resolved.
Compliance with the subpoena requires management attention and significant legal expense. In addition, criminal
proceedings may be initiated against us in connection with this inquiry. Any negative findings could result in
substantial financial penalties against us, exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid
programs and criminal penalties.

The investigation related to the subpoena we received on October 25, 2004 from the U.S. Attorney’s Office
for the Eastern District of New York could result in substantial penalties against us.

We are voluntarily cooperating with the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York and the
OIG with respect to the subpoena we received on October 25, 2004, which requires production of a wide range of
documents relating to our operations, including DaVita Laboratory Services. DVA Renal Healthcare received a
similar subpoena on November 4, 2004. To our knowledge, no proceedings have been initiated against us or
DVA Renal Healthcare at this time, although we cannot predict whether or when proceedings might be initiated
or when these matters may be resolved. Compliance with the subpoenas will continue to require management
attention and legal expense. In addition, criminal proceedings may be initiated against us and DVA Renal
Healthcare in connection with this inquiry. Any negative findings could result in substantial financial penalties
against us and DVA Renal Healthcare, exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid
programs and criminal penalties.

The pending federal review related to the subpoena we received in May 2002 from the U.S. Attorney’s
Office for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania could result in substantial penalties against us.

We are voluntarily cooperating with the Civil Division of the U.S. Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District
of Pennsylvania and the OIG in a review of some of our historical practices, including billing and other operating
procedures, our financial relationships with physicians and pharmaceutical companies, and the provision of
pharmaceutical and other ancillary services, including laboratory and other diagnostic testing services. The U.S.
Attorney’s Office has also requested and received information regarding certain of our laboratories. We are
unable to determine when these matters will be resolved, whether any additional areas of inquiry will be opened
or any outcome of these matters, financial or otherwise. Any negative findings could result in substantial
financial penalties against us and exclusion from future participation in the Medicare and Medicaid program.

If we fail to adhere to all of the complex government regulations that apply to our business, we could
suffer severe consequences that would substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

Our dialysis operations are subject to extensive federal, state and local government regulations, including
Medicare and Medicaid payment rules and regulations, federal and state anti-kickback laws, the Stark II
physician self-referral prohibition and analogous state referral statutes, and federal and state laws regarding the
collection, use and disclosure of patient health information. The regulatory scrutiny of healthcare providers,
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including dialysis providers, has increased significantly in recent years. Medicare has increased the frequency
and intensity of its certification inspections of dialysis centers in recent years. For example, we are required to
provide substantial documentation related to the administration of pharmaceuticals, including EPO, and, to the
extent that any such documentation is found insufficient, we may be required to refund any amounts received
from such administration by government or private payors, and be subject to substantial penalties under
applicable laws or regulations. In addition, fiscal intermediaries have increased their prepayment and post-
payment reviews.

We endeavor to comply with all of the requirements for receiving Medicare and Medicaid payments and to
structure all of our relationships with referring physicians to comply with the anti-kickback laws and the Stark II
physician self-referral law. However, the laws and regulations in this area are complex and subject to varying
interpretations. For example, none of our medical director agreements establishes compensation using the Stark
II safe harbor method; rather, compensation under our medical director agreements is the result of individual
negotiation and, we believe, exceeds amounts determined under the safe harbor method. If an enforcement
agency were to challenge the level of compensation that we pay our medical directors, we could be required to
change our practices, face criminal or civil penalties, pay substantial fines or otherwise experience a material
adverse effect as a result of a challenge to these arrangements.

Because of regulatory considerations unique to each of these states, all of our dialysis operations in New
York and some of our dialysis operations in New Jersey are conducted by privately-owned companies to which
we provide a broad range of administrative services. These operations accounted for approximately 6% of our
2005 dialysis revenue. We believe that we have structured these operations to comply with the laws and
regulations of these states, but we can give no assurances that they will not be challenged.

If any of our operations are found to violate these or other government regulations, we could suffer severe
consequences that would have a material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash flows including:

• Suspension or termination of our participation in government payment programs;
• Refunds of amounts received in violation of law or applicable payment program requirements;
• Loss of required government certifications or exclusion from government payment programs;
• Loss of licenses required to operate healthcare facilities in some of the states in which we operate,

including the loss of revenues from operations in New York and New Jersey conducted by privately-
owned companies as described above;

• Reductions in payment rates or coverage for dialysis and ancillary services and related pharmaceuticals;
• Fines, damages or monetary penalties for anti-kickback law violations, Stark II violations, submission of

false claims, civil or criminal liability based on violations of law, or other failures to meet regulatory
requirements;

• Claims for monetary damages from patients who believe their protected health information has been used
or disclosed in violation of federal or state patient privacy laws;

• Mandated practice changes that significantly increase operating expenses; and
• Termination of relationships with medical directors.

If our joint ventures were found to violate the law, we could suffer severe consequences that would have a
material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

As of December 31, 2005 we owned a controlling interest in approximately 70 dialysis related joint ventures,
representing approximately 15% of our dialysis revenue. Many of our joint ventures with physicians or physician
groups also have the physician owners providing medical director services to those centers or other centers we own
and operate. Because our relationships with physicians are governed by the “anti-kickback” statute contained in the
Social Security Act, we have sought to structure our joint venture arrangements to satisfy as many safe harbor
requirements as we believe are reasonably possible. However, our joint venture arrangements do not satisfy all
elements of any safe harbor under the federal anti-kickback statute. Based on the exceptions applicable to ESRD
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services, we believe that our joint venture arrangements and operations materially comply with the Stark II law. The
subpoena we received from the United States Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of Missouri on March 4,
2005, includes a request for documents related to our joint ventures. If our joint ventures are found to be in violation
of the anti-kickback statute or the Stark provisions, we could be required to restructure the joint ventures or refuse to
accept referrals for designated health services from the physicians with whom the joint venture centers have a
financial relationship. We also could be required to repay amounts received from Medicare and certain other payors
by the joint ventures pursuant to prohibited referrals, and we could be subject to monetary penalties and exclusion
from government healthcare programs. If our joint venture centers are subject to any of these penalties, we could
suffer severe consequences that would have a material adverse effect on our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

We may be subject to liability claims for damages and other expenses not covered by insurance that could
reduce our earnings and cash flows.

The administration of dialysis and related services to patients may subject us to litigation and liability for
damages. Our business, profitability and growth prospects could suffer if we face negative publicity or we pay
damages or defense costs in connection with a claim that is outside the scope of any applicable insurance
coverage, including claims related to contractual disputes, professional and general liability claims and claims
from commercial payors and other third parties relating to DVA Renal Healthcare’s settlement with the
Department of Justice. We currently maintain programs of general and professional liability insurance. However,
a successful professional liability, malpractice or negligence claim in excess of our insurance coverage could
have a material adverse effect on our earnings and cash flows.

In addition, if our costs of insurance and claims increase, then our earnings could decline. Market rates for
insurance premiums and deductibles have been steadily increasing. Our earnings and cash flows could be
materially and adversely affected by any of the following:

• Further increases in premiums and deductibles;
• Increases in the number of liability claims against us or the cost of settling or trying cases related to those

claims; and
• An inability to obtain one or more types of insurance on acceptable terms.

If businesses we acquire have liabilities that we are not aware of, we could suffer severe consequences that
would substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

Our business strategy includes the acquisition of dialysis centers and businesses that own and operate
dialysis centers, as well as other ancillary businesses. Businesses we acquire may have unknown or contingent
liabilities or liabilities that are in excess of the amounts that we estimated. Although we generally seek
indemnification from the sellers of businesses we acquire for matters that are not properly disclosed to us, we are
not always successful. In addition, even in cases where we are able to obtain indemnification, we may discover
liabilities greater than the contractual limits or the financial resources of the indemnifying party. In the event that
we are responsible for liabilities substantially in excess of any amounts recovered through rights to
indemnification, we could suffer severe consequences that would substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and
cash flows.

If a significant number of physicians were to cease referring patients to our dialysis centers, whether due
to regulatory or other reasons, then our revenues, earnings and cash flows would be substantially reduced.

Many physicians prefer to have their patients treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of
their practice supervise the overall care provided as medical directors of the centers. As a result, the primary
referral source for most of our centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical director
services to the center. Additionally, both current and former medical directors have no obligation to refer their
patients to our centers. If a medical director agreement terminates, whether before or at the end of its term, and a
new medical director is appointed, it may negatively impact the former medical director’s decision to treat his or
her patients at our center. Also, if the quality of service levels at our centers deteriorates, it may negatively
impact patient referrals and treatment volumes.
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Our medical director contracts are for fixed periods, generally three to ten years. Medical directors have no
obligation to extend their agreements with us. We may take actions to restructure existing relationships or take
positions in negotiating extensions of relationships to assure compliance with the safe harbor provisions of the
anti-kickback statute, Stark II law and other similar laws. These actions could negatively impact the decision of
physicians to extend their medical director agreements with us or to refer their patients to us. If the terms of any
existing agreement are found to violate applicable laws, we may not be successful in restructuring the
relationship which could lead to the early termination of the agreement, or force the physician to stop referring
patients to the centers.

The level of our current and future debt could have an adverse impact on our business.

We have substantial debt outstanding, including debt we incurred to finance the DVA Renal Healthcare
acquisition. In addition, we may incur additional indebtedness in the future. The high level of our indebtedness,
among other things, could:

• make it difficult for us to make payments on our debt securities;

• increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;

• require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our
indebtedness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions and investments and other general corporate purposes;

• expose us to interest rate fluctuations to the extent we have variable rate debt;

• limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the markets in which we
operate;

• place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

• limit our ability to borrow additional funds.

If additional debt financing is not available when required or is not available on acceptable terms, we may
be unable to grow our business, take advantage of business opportunities, respond to competitive pressures or
refinance maturing debt, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial
condition.

We will require a significant amount of cash to service our indebtedness. Our ability to generate cash
depends on many factors beyond our control.

Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness and to fund planned capital expenditures and expansion
efforts, including any strategic acquisitions we may make in the future, will depend on our ability to generate
cash. This, to a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, regulatory and other factors
that are beyond our control.

We cannot assure that our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future, that our
currently anticipated growth in revenue and cash flow will be realized on schedule or that future borrowings will
be available to us in an amount sufficient to enable us to service our indebtedness, including the senior and senior
subordinated notes, or to fund other liquidity needs. We may need to refinance all or a portion of our
indebtedness on or before maturity. Our senior secured credit facilities are secured by substantially all of our and
our subsidiaries’ assets. As such, our ability to refinance our debt or seek additional financing could be limited by
such security interest. We cannot assure that we will be able to refinance our indebtedness on commercially
reasonable terms or at all.
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If the current shortage of skilled clinical personnel continues or if we experience a higher than normal
turnover rate for DVA Renal Healthcare employees during integration, we may experience disruptions in
our business operations and increases in operating expenses.

We are experiencing increased labor costs and difficulties in hiring nurses due to a nationwide shortage of
skilled clinical personnel. We compete for nurses with hospitals and other health care providers. This nursing
shortage may limit our ability to expand our operations. If we are unable to hire skilled clinical personnel when
needed, our operations and treatment growth will be negatively impacted, which would result in reduced
revenues, earnings and cash flows.

In order to successfully integrate the DVA Renal Healthcare operations into our own, we require the
services of DVA Renal Healthcare’s clinical, operating and administrative employees. If we experience a higher
than normal turnover rate for DVA Renal Healthcare employees, we may not be able to effectively integrate
DVA Renal Healthcare’s systems and operations.

The acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare was significantly larger than any other acquisition we have
made to date. The integration of DVA Renal Healthcare centers into our operations is significant and we
may not realize anticipated benefits.

The DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition is the largest acquisition we have made to date. There is a risk that,
due to the size of the acquisition, we will be unable to integrate DVA Renal Healthcare into our operations as
effectively as we have prior acquisitions, which would result in fewer benefits to us from the acquisition than
anticipated as well as increased costs. The integration of the DVA Renal Healthcare operations requires
implementation of appropriate operations, management and financial reporting systems and controls as well as
integration of the clinical protocols, policies and procedures of both companies. We may experience difficulties
in our ability to successfully bill and collect for services rendered as a result of our upgrade and integration of the
billing and collection systems. We may experience difficulties in effectively implementing these and other
systems and integrating DVA Renal Healthcare’s systems and operations. The failure to successfully integrate
these and other systems could have a material adverse impact on our revenues, cash flows and operating results.

In addition, the integration of DVA Renal Healthcare requires the focused attention of our management
team, including a significant commitment of their time and resources, which could distract them from non-
integration matters. The need for management to focus on integration matters could have a material and adverse
impact on our revenues and operating results. If the integration is not successful or if our DVA Renal Healthcare
operations are less profitable than we anticipated, our results of operations and financial condition may be
materially and adversely affected.

If DVA Renal Healthcare does not comply with its corporate integrity agreement, or DVA Renal
Healthcare otherwise has failed or fails to comply with applicable government regulations to its
operations, we could be subject to additional penalties and otherwise may be materially harmed.

DVA Renal Healthcare entered into a settlement agreement with the Department of Justice and certain
agencies of the United States government relating to the Department of Justice’s investigation of DVA Renal
Healthcare’s Medicare and Medicaid billing practices and its relationships with physicians and pharmaceutical
manufacturers. If DVA Renal Healthcare does not comply with the terms of the corporate integrity agreement or
otherwise has failed or fails to comply with the extensive federal, state and local government regulations
applicable to its operations, we could be subject to additional penalties, including monetary penalties or
exclusion from participation in government programs, and otherwise may be materially harmed. The costs
associated with compliance with the corporate integrity agreement and cooperation with the government could be
substantial and may be greater than we currently anticipate. In addition, as a result of the settlement agreement,
commercial payors and other third parties may initiate legal proceedings against DVA Renal Healthcare related
to the billing practices and other matters covered by the settlement agreement.
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We have assumed substantially all of DVA Renal Healthcare’s liabilities, including contingent liabilities. If
these liabilities are greater than expected, or if there are unknown DVA Renal Healthcare obligations, our
business could be materially and adversely affected.

As a result of the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition, we assumed substantially all of DVA Renal
Healthcare’s liabilities, including contingent liabilities. We may learn additional information about DVA Renal
Healthcare’s business that adversely affects us, such as unknown liabilities, issues relating to internal controls
over financial reporting, or issues that could affect our ability to comply with laws and regulations governing
dialysis operations. As a result, we cannot assure that the DVA Renal Healthcare acquisition will not, in fact,
harm our business. Among other things, if DVA Renal Healthcare’s liabilities are greater than expected, or if
there are obligations of DVA Renal Healthcare of which we are not currently aware, our business could be
materially and adversely affected.

We have limited indemnification rights in connection with the settlement agreement and other regulatory
compliance and litigation matters affecting DVA Renal Healthcare, as well as with known contingent liabilities
of DVA Renal Healthcare that we assumed in connection with the acquisition. DVA Renal Healthcare may also
have other unknown liabilities of which we are not currently aware that we assumed in connection with the
acquisition. If we are responsible for liabilities not covered by indemnification rights or substantially in excess of
amounts covered through any indemnification rights, we could suffer severe consequences that would
substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and cash flows.

The integration of DVA Renal Healthcare and the realization of cost savings will require us to make
significant expenditures.

In order to obtain the cost savings and operating income that we believe the integration of DVA Renal
Healthcare should provide, we will be required to make significant expenditures. We are in the process of
integrating DVA Renal Healthcare but the extent and amount of these expenditures remains uncertain. In
addition, we may not achieve the cost savings we expect through the integration of the DVA Renal Healthcare
operations regardless of our expenditures, which failure would materially and adversely affect our financial
results.

If we lose the services of a significant number of DVA Renal Healthcare’s medical directors, our results of
operations could be harmed.

Certain of DVA Renal Healthcare’s contracts with its medical directors provide that the contract is
terminable upon a change of control of DVA Renal Healthcare. These termination provisions were triggered by
our acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare. If we lose the services of a significant number of DVA Renal
Healthcare’s medical directors and if they set up competing centers and our patients decide to receive treatments
at their centers, our results of operations may be harmed.

Our alliance and product supply agreement with Gambro Renal Products Inc. will limit our ability to
achieve cost savings with respect to products and equipment we are required to purchase under this
agreement.

We entered into a ten-year alliance and product supply agreement with Gambro Renal Products Inc., a
subsidiary of Gambro AB, pursuant to which we are required to purchase from Gambro Renal Products specified
percentages representing a significant majority of our requirements for hemodialysis products, supplies and
equipment at fixed prices. This will limit our ability to realize future cost savings in regard to these products and
equipment. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our total spending on hemodialysis products, supplies and
equipment was approximately 8% of our total operating costs. If Gambro Renal Products is unable to fulfill its
obligations under the agreement, we may have difficulty finding alternative sources of supplies on favorable
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financial terms, further reducing our ability to achieve cost savings. For instance, Gambro Renal Products’
supply from its manufacturing plant in Italy has been recently interrupted, which could require that we make
alternative arrangements to satisfy our needs for products supplied from that location. We are unable to predict
whether or when the interruption will be resolved. If we are unable to find alternative supply sources, our results
of operation could be harmed. In addition, as we replace existing equipment from other third-party manufacturers
with Gambro Renal Products’ equipment, we may incur additional expenses as we transition to this new
equipment.

Our ability to effectively provide the services we offer could be negatively impacted if certain of our
suppliers are unable to meet our needs which could substantially reduce our revenues, earnings and cash
flows.

We have significant suppliers that are either the sole or primary source of products critical to the services we
provide or to which we have committed obligations to make purchases, including Amgen, Gambro Renal
Products, Baxter Healthcare Corporation, as well as others. If any of these suppliers are unable to meet our needs
for the products they supply and we are not able to find adequate alternative sources, our revenues, earnings and
cash flows could be substantially reduced.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest rate sensitivity

The tables below provide information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
interest rates. For our debt obligations the table presents principal repayments and current weighted average
interest rates on our debt obligations as of December 31, 2005. The variable rates presented reflect the current
rates in effect at the end of 2005 including the economic effects of our swap agreements. These rates are based on
LIBOR plus margins based upon performance and leverage criteria plus the economic impact from the swap
agreements. The margins currently in effect range from 2.00% to 2.25%. For our interest rate swap agreements,
the table below presents the notional amounts by contract maturity date and the related interest rate terms of the
agreements (to pay fixed rates, and to receive LIBOR).

Expected maturity date

Total
Fair

Value

Average
interest

rate2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter

(dollars in millions)
Long-term debt:

Fixed rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 10 $ 3 $ 1 $ 1 $ 1 $1,352 $ 1,368 $ 1,387 6.98%
Variable rate . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 62 $ 64 $ 78 $ 86 $112 $2,387 $ 2,789 $ 2,789 6.62%

Notional
amount

Contract maturity date Pay
fixed

Receive
variable

Fair
value2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

(dollars in millions)
Swaps:

Pay-fixed swaps . . . . . . . . . . $1,580 $240 $372 $378 $401 $ 189 3.08% to 4.2675% LIBOR $ 30.8

As of December 31, 2005, we maintained a total of nine interest rate swap agreements with amortizing
notional amounts totaling $1,580 million. These agreements had the economic effect of modifying the LIBOR-
based variable interest rate to fixed rates ranging from 3.08% to 4.2675% for an overall weighted average
effective interest rate of 6.1%, which included the term loan B margin of 2.25%. The swap agreements expire in
2008 through 2010 and require quarterly interest payments. During 2005, we incurred net cash obligations of
approximately $1.8 million from these swaps, $0.3 million of which is included in debt expense and $1.5 million
of which is included in swap valuation gains. As of December 31, 2005, the total fair value of these swaps was an
asset of approximately $30.8 million. Also during 2005, we recorded $16.8 million, net of tax, of additional
comprehensive income for the changes in fair value of the effective portions of these swaps.

In conjunction with the repayment and extinguishment of our prior credit facilities during 2005, we
reclassified into net income $8.1 million of swap valuation gains that were previously recorded in other
comprehensive income. These gains represented the accumulated fair value of several interest rate swap
instruments that became ineffective as cash flow hedges as a result of the repayment of our prior credit facilities.
In addition we recorded a net loss of $2.1 million related to changes in fair values of these swaps that were not
effective as interest rate hedges until they were redesignated in the second quarter of 2005.

Portions of our various interest rate swap agreements that were previously designated and expected to be
effective as forward cash flow hedges became ineffective as a result of us not having any variable rate LIBOR-
based interest payments during a portion of 2005. This resulted in a net charge of $1.7 million to swap valuation
gains, which includes the $1.5 million discussed above as well as a reclassification into income of $2.0 million of
swap valuation losses that were previously recorded in other comprehensive income. The swap payment periods
that began after October 2005 were highly effective as cash flow hedges with gains or losses from changes in
their fair values reported in other comprehensive income.

At December 31, 2005, our overall credit facility average effective interest rate was 6.62%, and our overall
average effective interest rate was 6.74%.

As a result of all of our swap agreements, we had over 55% of our outstanding variable rate debt
economically fixed and approximately 70% of our total debt economically fixed as of December 31, 2005.

66



One means of assessing exposure to debt-related interest rate changes is duration-based analysis that
measures the potential loss in net income resulting from a hypothetical increase in interest rates of 100 basis
points across all variable rate maturities (referred to as a “parallel shift in the yield curve”). Under this model,
with all else constant, it is estimated that such an increase would have reduced net income by approximately $3.2
million, $5.9 million, and $6.5 million, net of tax, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

Exchange rate sensitivity

We are currently not exposed to any foreign currency exchange rate risk.
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Selected Financial Data
The following table presents selected consolidated financial and operating data for the periods indicated. In

October 2005, we completed the acquisition of DVA Renal Healthcare which was one of the largest dialysis
services providers in the United States operating 566 outpatient dialysis centers and generating annual revenues of
approximately $2 billion, for approximately $3.06 billion. In conjunction with a consent order issued by the Federal
Trade Commission, on October 4, 2005, we divested a total of 71 centers in order to complete the acquisition of
DVA Renal Healthcare. See footnote (5) below. The operating results of DVA Renal Healthcare are included in our
operating results from October 1, 2005, and the operating results of the historical DaVita divested centers are
reflected as discontinued operations in our consolidated statements of income for all periods presented. The
following financial and operating data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operation” and our consolidated financial statements filed as part of this
report.

Year ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

(in thousands, except share data)
Income statement data:
Net operating revenues(1) . . . . . . . . . $ 2,973,918 $ 2,177,330 $ 1,919,278 $ 1,766,564 $ 1,572,307
Operating expenses(2) . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,508,547 1,796,204 1,559,347 1,400,897 1,276,327

Operating income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 465,371 381,126 359,931 365,667 295,980
Debt expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (139,586) (52,411) (66,821) (71,612) (72,401)
Swap valuations gain, net(3) . . . . . . . 4,548
Refinancing (charges) gains(4) . . . . . (8,170) (26,501) (48,930) 1,629
Other income, net . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8,934 4,125 3,042 3,980 2,476

Income from continuing operations
before income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . 331,097 332,840 269,651 249,105 227,684

Income tax expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 123,675 128,332 105,173 102,749 99,269

Income from continuing operations . . 207,422 204,508 164,478 146,356 128,415
Income from discontinued

operations, net of tax (5) . . . . . . . . 13,157 17,746 11,313 10,973 8,900
Gain on disposal of discontinued

operations, net of tax . . . . . . . . . . . 8,064

Net income . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 228,643 $ 222,254 $ 175,791 $ 157,329 $ 137,315

Basic earnings per common share
from continuing operations(5)(6) . . $ 2.06 $ 2.07 $ 1.74 $ 1.36 $ 1.02

Diluted earnings per common share
from continuing operations (5)(6) . . $ 1.99 $ 1.99 $ 1.56 $ 1.22 $ 0.95

Weighted average shares
outstanding:(6)(8)

Basic . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100,762,000 98,727,000 94,346,000 107,747,000 125,652,000

Diluted . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 104,068,000 102,861,000 113,760,000 135,720,000 139,408,000

Ratio of earnings to fixed
charges(7) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2.86:1 5.26:1 3.98:1 3.67:1 3.51:1

Balance sheet data:
Working capital . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 664,675 $ 426,985 $ 242,238 $ 251,925 $ 175,983
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6,279,762 2,511,959 1,945,530 1,775,693 1,662,683
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4,085,435 1,322,468 1,117,002 1,311,252 811,190
Shareholders’ equity(8) . . . . . . . . . . . 850,609 523,134 306,871 70,264 503,637
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(1) Net operating revenues include $3,771 in 2005, $8,293 in 2004, $24,000 in 2003 and $58,778 in 2002 of
Medicare lab recoveries relating to prior years’ services and $22,000 in 2001 of prior years’ dialysis
services revenue relating to cash settlements and collections in excess of prior estimates.

(2) Total operating expenses include recoveries of $5,192 in 2002 and $35,220 in 2001 of accounts receivable
reserved in 1999.

(3) The swap valuation net gains of $4,548 in 2005, represented the accumulated fair value on several swap
instruments that were ineffective as cash flow hedges, as a result of the repayment of our credit facilities, as
well as changes in the fair values of these swaps until they were redesignated, and represent changes in the
fair value of the swaps during periods in which there was no matching variable rate LIBOR-based interest
payments.

(4) Refinancing charges of $8,170 in 2005 represented the write-off of deferred financing costs associated with
the extinguishment of our prior credit facility. Refinancing charges of $26,501 in 2003 represented the
consideration paid to redeem the $125,000 55⁄8% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2006 and the
$345,000 7% Convertible Subordinated Notes due 2009 in excess of book value, the write-off of related
deferred financing costs and other financing fees associated with the amendment of the prior credit facility.
Refinancing charges of $48,930 in 2002 represented the write-off of deferred financing costs associated with
the retirement of the $225,000 outstanding 91⁄4% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011. Refinancing gains of
$1,629 in 2001 related to the write-off of deferred financing costs offset by accelerated swap liquidation
gains from debt refinancing.

(5) During 2005, we divested a total of 71 outpatient dialysis centers in conjunction with a consent order issued
by the Federal Trade Commission on October 4, 2005 in order for us to complete the acquisition of DVA
Renal Healthcare. In addition, we completed the sale of three additional centers that were previously
pending state regulatory approval in January 2006. The operating results of the historical DaVita divested
and held for sale centers are reflected as discontinued operations in our consolidated financial statements for
all periods presented.

(6) All share and per-share data for all periods presented prior to 2005 have been adjusted to retroactively
reflect the effects of a 3-for-2 stock split that occurred in the second quarter of 2004.

(7) The ratio of earnings to fixed charges was computed by dividing earnings by fixed charges. Earnings for this
purpose is defined as pretax income from continuing operations adjusted by adding back fixed charges
expensed during the period. Fixed charges include debt expense (interest expense and amortization of
deferred financing costs), the estimated interest component of rental expense on operating leases, and
capitalized interest.

(8) Share repurchases consisted of 3,350,100 shares of common stock for $96,540 in 2004, 5,162,850 shares of
common stock for $107,162 in 2003, 40,991,216 shares of common stock for $642,171 in 2002 and
1,333,050 shares of common stock for $20,360 in 2001. Debt of $124,700 and $526 was converted into
7,302,528 and 24,045 shares of common stock in 2003. Shares issued in connection with stock awards
amounted to 3,303,451 in 2005, 5,106,783 in 2004, 3,539,919 in 2003, 5,131,425 in 2002, and 4,711,989
in 2001.
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Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “DVA”. The following
table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low closing prices for our common stock as reported by
the New York Stock Exchange. The closing prices have been adjusted to retroactively reflect the effect of a stock
split in the second quarter of 2004.

High Low

Year ended December 31, 2005:
1st quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $44.10 $39.26
2nd quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 46.72 40.01
3rd quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47.78 43.28
4th quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53.59 47.88

Year ended December 31, 2004:
1st quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $31.86 $25.33
2nd quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34.17 29.19
3rd quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32.18 27.38
4th quarter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 39.62 29.40

The closing price of our common stock on February 1, 2006 was $54.19 per share. According to The Bank
of New York, our registrar and transfer agent, as of February 1, 2006, there were 3,946 holders of record of our
common stock. We have not declared or paid cash dividends to holders of our common stock since 1994. We
have no current plans to pay cash dividends and we are restricted from paying dividends under the terms of our
credit facilities and our Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes. Also, see the heading “Liquidity and capital
resources” under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
the notes to our consolidated financial statements.

On September 11, 2003, the Company announced that the Board of Directors authorized the Company to
repurchase up to $200 million of the Company’s common stock, with no expiration date. On November 2, 2004,
the Company announced that the Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company’s authorization to
repurchase shares of its common stock by an additional $200 million. The Company is authorized to make
purchases from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions, depending upon market
conditions and other considerations. However, under the terms of our credit facilities and our Senior and Senior
Subordinated Notes, we have share repurchase limitations.

There were no repurchases of our common stock during 2005. We had approximately $249 million available
from Board authorizations to repurchase shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2005.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Corporate Office
DaVita Inc.
601 Hawaii Street
El Segundo, CA 90245
Tel 310.536.2400/800.310.4872
Fax 310.536.2675
www.davita.com
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KPMG LLP
Seattle, Washington

Stock Registrar and Transfer Agent
The Bank of New York
New York, New York

Annual Meeting of Stockholders
Monday, May 15, 2006
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Burlingame, CA 94010

Common Stock Listing
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)
Symbol: DVA

NYSE Certification
On June 9, 2005 the Company
submitted to the NYSE a certification
signed by the Chief Executive Officer
that he was not aware of any violation
by DaVita of the NYSE corporate
governance listing standards.

Section 302 Certifications
Certifications of the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
been included as Exhibit 31 in DaVita’s
annual report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Form 10-K Request
For a free copy of DaVita’s annual
report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005 please send a
written request to LeAnne Zumwalt,
Vice President of Investor Relations at
DaVita’s corporate address.

Corporate Governance Guidelines
DaVita’s corporate governance
guidelines, Code of Ethics and Board
Committee Charters are located on
DaVita’s website and can be obtained
free of charge, upon request from
LeAnne Zumwalt at DaVita’s corporate
address.
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